
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Public Meeting 

Via Video-conference 

 

DATE:    December 15, 2020 

 

 

OPEN SESSION - 6:15 PM 

To view this meeting live, go to the City's website at www.ci.cumberland.md.us and access the public 

meetings link under the Government tab, or go to Facebook and access the page: Cumberland City Hall 

Livestream. 

To provide public comment during this video conference, go to https://zoom.us and enter the following: 

Use Meeting ID (825 8961 9294) Passcode (350593) 

To join by phone dial: (+1 301 715 8592); Meeting ID (825 8961 9294) Passcode (380593) 

Citizens wishing to speak will be placed in a waiting room and will be called upon at the appropriate time. 

 

Roll Call 

Director's Reports 

(A) Public Works 

1. Maintenance Division monthly report for November, 2020 

(B) Police 

1. Police Department monthly report for November, 2020 

(C) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

1. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for November, 2020 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Closed Session Minutes of September 22 and October 6, 2020 

  



 

Public Hearings 

1. Public Hearing to receive comments on the 2019 Consolidated Annual Performance and 

Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the City's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program 

Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance No. 3880 (2nd and 3rd readings) - authorizing a Zoning Map Amendment 

(ZMA #20-02) to rezone five (5) parcels at the intersection of Maple Street and East 

Oldtown Road to correct a mistake in their zoning designation.  The subject tracts are 

currently zoned "Local Business" and the correct designation should be "Urban 

Residential." 

New Business 

(A) Resolutions 

1. Resolution R2020-07 - authorizing certain businesses located in the Gateway Enterprise 

Zone to receive tax credits for the 2021-2022 tax year 

(B) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3881 (1st reading) - authorizing the issuance and sale of general obligation 

bonds and bond anticipation notes each in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 

$4,525,000, and general obligation refunding bonds to finance or refinance costs of 

projects authorized for debt funding in the FY 2021 budget 

2. Ordinance No. 3882 (1st reading) - authorizing the issuance and sale of (1) general 

obligation refunding bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $42,260,000 

to refund in whole or in part (A) the City's outstanding 2011 through 2019 Community 

Development Administration (CDA) loans and (B) certain other outstanding general 

obligation bonds, and (2) general obligation bonds to subsequently refund any general 

obligation refunding bonds identified in (1) that are actually issued 

(C) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 26,739 - approving an amendment to the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Program to reduce funding to the 2020 Targeted City Foot and Bike Patrol 

Project by $84.00, bringing the total 2020 CDBG allocation to $809,458 

2. Order 26,740 - declaring 884 Sperry Terrace to be surplus property and stating the City's 

intent to transfer the property to Harold P. and Ann V. Atkins for the amount of $9,200 

3. Order 26,741 - approving budget appropriations and transfers for fiscal year 2019-2020  

4. Order 26,742 - accepting the sole source proposal from SADA Systems, Inc., to provide a 

G Suite Enterprise Account for the City's use of Google mail and Google applications for 

a term of three (3) years, effective December 6, 2020 through December 6, 2023, in the 

amount not-to-exceed $65,512.20 



5. Order 26,743 - authorizing execution of a third Amendment to Purchase Agreement with 

Allegany Junction Limited Partnership regarding the sale of land located at 100 Reynolds 

Street, to allow for two (2) additional 30-day closing extensions 

6. Order 26,744 - authorizing execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging that 

the Deed of Trust made by Rebecca Dorothy D. Jackson to the City, dated march 10, 

2008 (Deed Book 1478, Page 139) pertaining to 10 Decatur Street has been fully paid and 

the lien is therefore released 

7. Order 26,745 - authorizing execution of a Grant Agreement on behalf of the Downtown 

Development Commission with Maryland Heritage Areas Authority to accept $20,000 in 

grant funding for the Baltimore Street Access Project (12-16-M), with the condition that 

the City provides matching funding for the full cost of the grant 

8. Order 26,746 - accepting the sole source proposal from Stryker Medical to provide three 

(3) LUCAS mechanical CPR devices w/ annual service agreement and two (2) Life-Pak 

1500 cardiac monitor/defibrillators with annual service agreement for a cost not-to-

exceed $107,476.94.  Funding for this equipment will be provided through CARES Act 

funding. 

9. Order 26,747 - authorizing the Fire Chief to accept a MD Institute for Emergency 

Medical Services Systems (MIEMSS) Grant in the amount of up to $17,120.86 for two 

(2) Life-Pak 1500 cardiac monitor/defibrillators, to be purchased on a sole source basis 

from Stryker Medical, with the intent that UPMC Western MD will be 

gifting/reimbursing the City for approximately $20,373.38, which is the balance of the 

cost 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  



File Attachments for Item:

. Maintenance Division monthly report for November, 2020













File Attachments for Item:

. Police Department monthly report for November, 2020











File Attachments for Item:

. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for November, 2020











File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of the Closed Session Minutes of September 22 and October 6, 2020



12 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 

Second Floor Conference Room 

Tuesday, September 22, 2020, 2:00 p.m. 

  

The Mayor and City Council convened in open session at 2:00 p.m. for the purpose of closing the 

meeting for an executive session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b) (7) of the General Provisions Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland to receive legal advice regarding a contractual matter. 

 

MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded by 

Council Member Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, and 

Laurie Marchini.  Council Member Seth Bernard was absent. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey D. Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie A. 

Woodring, City Clerk; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; Robert Smith, City 

Engineer; William Cochran, Cochran Studio; Andrew Fedorko, Greg Elliott, and Steve Seth, EADS 

Group. 

 



5 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 

Second Floor Conference Room 

Tuesday, October 6, 2020, 5:45 p.m. 

  

The Mayor and City Council convened in open session at 5:45 p.m. for the purpose of closing the 

meeting for an executive session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b)(9) of the General Provisions Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss union negotiations regarding the AFSCME collective 

bargaining agreement. 

 

MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded by 

Council Member Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Seth Bernard, Richard Cioni, and 

Eugene Frazier.  Council Member Laurie Marchini was absent. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey D. Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; and 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk 

 



File Attachments for Item:

1. Ordinance No. 3880 (2nd and 3rd readings) - authorizing a Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA #20-02) 

to rezone five (5) parcels at the intersection of Maple Street and East Oldtown Road to correct a mistake 

in their zoning designation.  The subject tracts are currently zoned "Local Business" and the correct 

designation should be "Urban Residential."





































File Attachments for Item:

. Resolution R2020-07 - authorizing certain businesses located in the Gateway Enterprise Zone to receive 

tax credits for the 2021-2022 tax year



City of Cumberland 
- Maryland – 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R2020-07 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 

BUSINESSES LOCATED WITHIN THE GATEWAY ENTERPRISE ZONE TO RECEIVE 

TAX CREDITS FOR THE TAX YEAR 2021-2022, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LOCAL 

STANDARDS ESTABLISHED FOR THE ZONE. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Secretary of the Maryland Department of Commerce, previously known 

as the Maryland Department of Business and Economic Development, has 

heretofore designated a certain area located in the City of Cumberland and 

Allegany County, Maryland, as the “Gateway Enterprise Zone;” and 

 

WHEREAS, any business entity meeting the requirements and conditions of Article 81, 

Section 12G-11 of the Annotated Code of Maryland, may benefit from certain 

tax credits; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Enterprise Zone Advisory Committee met on November 24, 2020, and 

has determined that certain business entities located within the Gateway 

Enterprise Zone are qualified to receive such tax credits; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, is to certify that the 

said business entities located in the city limits are in compliance with the 

local standards established for designation in the Gateway Enterprise Zone 

as a pre-condition to the granting of such tax credits. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, 

Maryland, as follows: 

 

 

SECTION I 

 

 That the business entities set forth in Exhibit I, attached hereto and incorporated 

herein, be and are herby certified as being in compliance with the local standards established 

for the Gateway Enterprise Zone. 

 

 

 

 



 2 

SECTION II 

 

 That the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, does hereby certify that 

the property situated within the boundaries of the Gateway Enterprise Zone owned or 

leased by the companies set forth in Exhibit II, attached hereto and incorporated herein, is 

property qualified to receive the real property tax credit established by Article 81, Section 

12G-11 of the Annotated Code of Maryland for the taxable year 2021-2022. 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, that this 

Resolution shall become effective on the date of its adoption. 

 

Given under our Hands and Seals this _____ day of ____________, 2020, with the Corporate 

Seal of the City of Cumberland hereto attached, duly attested by the City Clerk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Attest: 

 

 

 

 

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

Mayor and City Council 

Of Cumberland 

 

 

 

Raymond M. Morriss 

Mayor 



 3 

 

 

EXHIBIT I 
(Eligible for State Income Tax Credits 2021-2022) 

 

 

 

CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. 

CFBC Properties, LLC  

Countryhouse Residence 

Cresap Automotive Machine 

Elite Hospitality, Inc. (Hampton Inn) 

PharmaCare Institutional Services 

Rageway / R.H. Lapp and Sons, Inc. 

Somerset Steel Erection Co., Inc. (Riggs Industries, Inc.) 

Willowbrook Holdings, LLC (Hampton Inn) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 4 

EXHIBIT II 
(Eligible for Local Property Tax Credits 2021-2022) 

 

 

 

CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. 

42 Baltimore Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

CFBC Properties, LLC 

(Blue Cross / Blue Shield) 

10 Commerce Drive 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Countryhouse Residence 

14 Cumberland Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Cresap Automotive Machine 

631 North Mechanic Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Elite Hospitality, Inc. (Hampton Inn) 

109 Welton Drive 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

PharmaCare Institutional Services 

3 Commerce Drive 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Rageway / R.H. Lapp and Sons, Inc. 

880 Kelly Road 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Somerset Steel Erection Co., Inc. (Riggs Industries, Inc.) 

115 Elizabeth Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Willowbrook Holdings, LLC (Hampton Inn) 

109 Welton Drive 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Ordinance 3881 (1st reading) - authorizing the issuance and sale of general obligation bonds and bond 

anticipation notes each in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,525,000, and general obligation

refunding bonds to finance or refinance costs of projects authorized for debt funding in the FY 2021 

budget



 

__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

ORDINANCE NO.  3881 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND ENTITLED 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE AND EMPOWER MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF CUMBERLAND (THE “CITY”) TO ISSUE AND SELL FROM TIME TO TIME, 

UPON ITS FULL FAITH AND CREDIT, ONE OR MORE SERIES OF (1)(A) GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS AND (B) GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION 

NOTES, EACH IN AN ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED FOUR MILLION FIVE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($4,525,000), AND (2) GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SUBJECT TO 

THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED FOR HEREIN, THE PROCEEDS OF THE SALE 

THEREOF TO BE USED AND APPLIED FOR THE PUBLIC PURPOSE OF 

FINANCING, REIMBURSING OR REFINANCING COSTS OF THE PROJECTS 

IDENTIFIED HEREIN AND RELATED COSTS; PROVIDING THAT THE MAYOR 

AND CITY COUNCIL, THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY, BY RESOLUTION 

SHALL DETERMINE, APPROVE OR PROVIDE FOR VARIOUS MATTERS 

RELATING TO THE AUTHORIZATION, SALE, SECURITY, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, 

PAYMENT AND PREPAYMENT OR REDEMPTION OF AND FOR EACH SERIES OF 

THE BONDS, THE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES OR THE REFUNDING BONDS 

(COLLECTIVELY, THE “OBLIGATIONS”); PROVIDING FOR THE IMPOSITION OF 

AD VALOREM TAXES SUFFICIENT FOR, AND PLEDGING THE FULL FAITH AND 

CREDIT AND UNLIMITED TAXING POWER OF THE CITY TO, THE PAYMENT OF 

DEBT SERVICE ON THE OBLIGATIONS; PROVIDING THAT DEBT SERVICE ON 

THE OBLIGATIONS ALSO MAY BE PAID FROM OTHER LAWFULLY AVAILABLE 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 2 - 

REVENUE SOURCES; PROVIDING THAT CERTAIN ACTIONS MAY BE TAKEN OR 

PROVIDED FOR BY RESOLUTION IN CONNECTION WITH THE REISSUANCE OR 

MODIFICATION OF ANY OF THE OBLIGATIONS; PROVIDING THAT ANY OF THE 

OBLIGATIONS MAY BE CONSOLIDATED WITH OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF THE 

CITY AND ISSUED AS A SINGLE SERIES; AUTHORIZING, DIRECTING AND 

EMPOWERING CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OBLIGATIONS; AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS OF 

THE OBLIGATIONS TO BE MADE BY RESOLUTION UNLESS ANOTHER ACTION 

IS REQUIRED; PROVIDING THAT THIS TITLE IS A FAIR SUMMARY OF THIS 

ORDINANCE; PROVIDING THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 

BE LIBERALLY CONSTRUED; AND OTHERWISE GENERALLY RELATING TO 

THE ISSUANCE, SALE, DELIVERY AND PAYMENT OF AND FOR THE 

OBLIGATIONS. 

 

RECITALS 

 

 1. Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, a municipal corporation of the State of 

Maryland and a municipality within the meaning of the Enabling Act, the Bond Anticipation Note 

Act and the Refunding Act identified herein (the “City”), is authorized and empowered by Sections 

19-301 to 19-309, inclusive, of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as 

replaced, supplemented or amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter of 

the City, as replaced, supplemented or amended (the “Charter”), to borrow money for any proper 

public purpose and to evidence such borrowing by the issuance and sale of its general obligation 

bonds. 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 3 - 

 2. The City has determined to undertake the public purpose projects described in Section 

2(a) of this Ordinance. 

 3. The City has determined to authorize the issuance from time to time of one or more 

series of its general obligation bonds in order to finance, reimburse or refinance all or a portion of the 

costs of any of the public purpose projects described in Section 2(a) of this Ordinance and related 

costs, including costs of issuance. 

 4. Prior to issuing one or more series of the bonds authorized hereby, the City may need 

to obtain interim financing in order to finance, reimburse or refinance applicable project costs on a 

timely basis through the issuance from time to time of its general obligation bond anticipation notes 

in one or more series pursuant to the authority of Sections 19-211 to 19-223, inclusive, of the Local 

Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as replaced, supplemented or amended (the 

“Bond Anticipation Note Act”). 

 5. Subsequent to the issuance of any bonds provided for herein, the City may desire to 

currently refund or advance refund all or a portion of such bonds through the issuance from time to 

time of one or more series of its general obligation refunding bonds pursuant to the authority of 

Section 19-207 of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as replaced, 

supplemented or amended (the “Refunding Act”), and any other applicable law. 

 6. The City has determined to pledge its full faith and credit and unlimited taxing power 

to the prompt payment of debt service on the bonds, the bond anticipation notes and the refunding 

bonds authorized hereby. 

 7. The method of sale of any bonds, bond anticipation notes or refunding bonds 

authorized hereby will be determined by the Mayor and City Council of the City, the governing body 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 4 - 

of the City (the “Mayor and City Council”), by resolution pursuant to the authority of the Enabling 

Act, the Bond Anticipation Note Act, the Refunding Act, Section 82A of the Charter, any other 

applicable law, and this Ordinance, as applicable. 

 8. As provided in the Charter, the City shall issue any bonds, bond anticipation notes or 

refunding bonds authorized hereby in accordance with the terms and conditions provided for in a 

resolution or resolutions to be adopted by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to the authority of the 

Enabling Act, the Bond Anticipation Note Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the 

Charter, any other applicable law and this Ordinance, as applicable. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND: 

 SECTION 1. (a) The Recitals to this Ordinance are deemed a substantive part of this 

Ordinance and incorporated by reference herein.  Capitalized terms used in the Sections of this 

Ordinance that are not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the 

Recitals to this Ordinance. 

  (b) References in this Ordinance to any official by title shall be deemed to refer 

(i) to any official authorized under the Charter, the code of ordinances of the City (the “City Code”) 

or other applicable law or authority to act in such titled official’s stead during the absence or disability 

of such titled official, (ii) to any person who has been elected, appointed or designated to fill such 

position in an acting or interim capacity under the Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or 

authority, (iii) to any person who serves in a “deputy,” “associate,” or “assistant” capacity as such an 

official, provided that the applicable responsibilities, rights or duties referred to herein have been 

delegated to such deputy, associate or assistant in accordance with the Charter, the City Code or other 

applicable law or authority, and/or (iv) to the extent an identified official commonly uses another title 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 5 - 

not provided for in the Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or authority, the official, 

however known, who is charged under the Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or authority 

with the applicable responsibilities, rights or duties referred to herein. 

  (c) References in this Ordinance to the “principal amount” of any of the Bonds, 

the BANs, the Refunding Bonds or the Obligations (each as defined herein) shall be construed to 

mean the par amount of such Bonds, BANs, Refunding Bonds or Obligations, as applicable. 

 SECTION 2. (a) Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act and Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, the City hereby determines to borrow money and incur indebtedness from time to time 

for the public purpose of financing, reimbursing or refinancing costs of certain projects identified as 

follows: (A) new and/or replacement vehicles and heavy duty equipment (including, without 

limitation, patrol vehicles, utility vehicles, light and heavy duty trucks, sport utility vehicles, 

backhoes and mower equipment attachments), (B) facility and site improvements (including, 

without limitation, exterior and structural building improvements and renovations, sprinklers, 

fence repair and replacement, one or more pole buildings, and various field improvements), (C) 

bridge and access design, improvements, construction and repairs, (D) street improvements, (E) 

various water system equipment, improvements and repairs (including, without limitation, sludge 

thickener mixers, cross connections program upgrades, hydrant/valve replacement, water main 

replacement, valve equipment, waterlines, and filtration plant improvements, including but not 

limited to intake screening, concrete repairs and dam repairs), and/or (F) various sewer and flood 

system equipment, improvements and repairs (including, without limitation, SCADA system 

equipment and improvements, electrical switching gear, influent screen design and construction, 

ammonia-nitrogen and nitrate probes, and concrete repairs), all for use by various City 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 6 - 

departments, including, without limitation, the Police, Fire, Engineering, Public Works, Parks & 

Recreation, Water Distribution, Sanitary Sewer, and Flood Control Departments (the projects 

generally described in clauses (A) through (F) being referred to herein collectively as the 

“Projects” and, individually, as a “Project”), together with, in each such case as is applicable with 

respect to the respective Project components described in clauses (A) through (F), land and right-

of-way acquisition and development; acquisition of other property rights; site and utility 

improvements, including, without limitation, grading, landscaping, paving and repaving, sidewalk, 

curb, gutter, storm water, water and sewer improvements, traffic control improvements, and related 

or similar activities and expenses; demolition, razing and removal; acquisition, construction, 

expansion, upgrading, reconstruction, replacement, renovation, rehabilitation, improvement, 

installation, furnishing and equipping activities and expenses and related or similar activities and 

expenses; planning, design, architectural, engineering, feasibility, testing, surveying, document 

development, bidding, permitting, inspection, construction management, financial and legal 

expenses and other related or similar activities and expenses; contingencies; costs of issuance 

(which may include costs of bond insurance or other credit or liquidity enhancement); capitalized 

interest (whether or not expressly so stated); and any such costs that may represent the City’s share 

or contribution to the financing or refinancing of any such Project (collectively, “Costs of the 

Projects”).  It is the intention of the Mayor and City Council that proceeds of the Bonds (or of any of 

the BANs, as applicable) may be spent on any applicable Costs of the Projects, including costs related 

to changes in the scopes of and/or identifications of any of the Projects effected through applicable 

budgetary procedures or applicable law.   



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 7 - 

  (b) The City, without notice to or the consent of any registered owners of any 

issued Bonds (and of any issued BANs, as applicable), may allocate and reallocate the principal 

amount of any issued Bonds (and of any issued BANs, as applicable) (exclusive of any premium 

realized upon sale or investment earnings that may be applied for such purposes) to be spent on Costs 

of the Projects among any of the Projects in compliance with applicable budgetary procedures or 

applicable law.   

 SECTION 3. (a) To evidence the borrowing and indebtedness authorized in Section 2 

of this Ordinance, the City, acting pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter and this Ordinance, hereby determines to issue and sell from time to time, in one or 

more series, upon its full faith and credit, its general obligation bonds in an original aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed Four Million Five Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 

($4,525,000) (each, a “series of the Bonds” and, collectively, the “Bonds”).  Any series of the Bonds 

may consist of one or more bonds and any such bond may be issued in installment and/or draw-down 

form.  

  (b) In the event the City issues any series of the BANs pursuant to Section 6 of 

this Ordinance, proceeds of the Bonds of any series in anticipation of which such BANs were issued 

may be applied to prepay or pay principal, premium and/or interest on such series of the BANs in 

accordance with the provisions of the Bond Anticipation Note Act, and such application shall be 

deemed the payment of Costs of the Projects for purposes of this Ordinance. 

  (c) By resolution or as otherwise allowed by applicable law, the Mayor and City 

Council may determine or provide for the determination of how any unexpended proceeds of any 

series of the Bonds (or any series of the BANs, as applicable), premium realized upon sale and/or any 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 8 - 

investment earnings on proceeds of any such series of the Bonds or of the BANs shall be expended, 

which may include, without limitation, on Costs of the Projects, on costs of issuance of such series of 

the Bonds or of the BANs, or on debt service payable or prepayable on such series of the Bonds or of 

the BANs, as applicable, to the extent permitted by applicable law. 

 SECTION 4.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be used and applied by the City exclusively 

and solely for the public purposes described in Sections 2 and 3 of this Ordinance, unless a 

supplemental ordinance is enacted by the Mayor and City Council to provide for the use and 

application of such proceeds for some other proper public purpose authorized by the Enabling Act, 

the Charter or other applicable law; provided that, no such supplemental ordinance shall be required 

if changes in the scope of or description of any Project are otherwise made as contemplated in Section 

2(a) of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 5.  Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the 

Charter and this Ordinance, the Mayor and City Council, prior to the issuance, sale and delivery of 

each series of the Bonds, shall adopt a resolution or resolutions specifying, prescribing, determining, 

providing for or approving such matters, details, forms (including, without limitation, the form or 

substantially final form of the Bonds of such series), documents or procedures as may be required by 

the Enabling Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter or this Ordinance or as the Mayor and City 

Council may deem appropriate for the authorization, sale, security, issuance, delivery, payment, 

prepayment or redemption of or for such series of the Bonds.  Any such resolution may, subject to 

the limitations of any applicable law, set forth, determine or provide for the determination of, 

provide for, or approve or provide for the approval of, among other matters, as applicable, the 

designation of such series of the Bonds; the date of issue of such series of the Bonds; the original 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 9 - 

aggregate principal amount of such series of the Bonds; the denomination or denominations of such 

series of the Bonds; the maturity or maturities of such series of the Bonds; the principal installment 

or installments (including, without limitation, serial maturities and/or mandatory sinking fund 

installments) payable on such series of the Bonds; the rate or rates of interest, or the method of 

determining the rate or rates of interest, payable on such series of the Bonds, which may be fixed or 

variable; provisions for the payment of late fees, additional interest and/or penalties payable on the 

Bonds of such series and/or adjustments to interest rates in appropriate circumstances; the purchase 

price for such series of the Bonds; provisions relating to the prepayment or redemption of such series 

of the Bonds at the City’s option or by mandatory sinking fund payments; provisions allowing the 

registered owners of such series of the Bonds to put or cause the prepayment or redemption of the 

same at their option; the manner of selling such series of the Bonds, which may be either at public or 

private sale, and all matters in connection therewith; the specific Projects the costs of which are to be 

financed, reimbursed or refinanced from proceeds of such series of the Bonds; any limitations on the 

Costs of the Projects on which the proceeds of such series of the Bonds may be expended; provisions 

for the appropriation, disposal and/or investment of proceeds of such series of the Bonds; the manner 

of executing such series of the Bonds; the selection of any bond registrar, paying agent, investment 

bidding agent or other appropriate service providers in connection with such series of the Bonds; 

certifications, representations, determinations, designations or elections relating to the tax-exempt or 

taxable status of interest payable on such series of the Bonds; and all other terms and conditions 

pursuant to which such series of the Bonds will be issued, sold and delivered, including, without 

limitation, any determinations to be made or provided for by resolution as contemplated by Section 

82A(d) of the Charter to the extent not determined or provided for in this Ordinance.  Among other 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 10 - 

matters, the Mayor and City Council by resolution may authorize, approve or otherwise provide for 

(i) payment of any commitment fee, breakage fee or similar fee and other costs payable in connection 

with any series of the Bonds (including, without limitation, other parties’ legal costs and expenses), 

(ii) the obtaining of credit enhancement or liquidity enhancement for any series of the Bonds (and the 

negotiation, approval, execution and delivery of any agreements or documents relating thereto), and 

(iii) any other agreements, documents, instruments or determinations necessary or desirable to 

enhance the marketability of or as security for any series of the Bonds, including, without limitation, 

any ratings, any official statement or similar disclosure document or any continuing disclosure 

undertaking required to satisfy the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-

12.  By resolution the Mayor and City Council may delegate to one or more City officials the authority 

to make any final determinations, approvals or decisions with respect to any series of the Bonds.  Any 

resolution may specify, prescribe, determine or provide for the determination of, provide for, or 

approve or provide for the approval of, the matters identified in this Section 5 for more than one series 

of the Bonds.    

 SECTION 6. (a) Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Bond Anticipation 

Note Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter and this Ordinance, the City is hereby authorized and 

empowered to issue and sell from time to time, upon its full faith and credit, one or more series of its 

general obligation bond anticipation notes in an original aggregate principal amount not to exceed 

Four Million Five Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($4,525,000.00) (each, a series of the 

“BANs” and, collectively, the “BANs”) prior to and in anticipation of the sale of any series of the 

Bonds in order to finance, reimburse or refinance Costs of the Projects on an interim basis, and to 

finance or reimburse any costs of issuance of the BANs.  Any such series of the BANs may consist 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 11 - 

of one or more notes and any such note may be issued in installment form and/or draw-down form.  

Prior to the issuance, sale and delivery of each series of the BANs, the Mayor and City Council shall 

adopt a resolution or resolutions pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Bond Anticipation 

Note Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter and this Ordinance authorizing such series of the BANs 

and specifying, prescribing, determining or providing for the determination of, providing for, or 

approving or providing for the approval of, with respect to such series of the BANs, the types of 

matters, details, forms, documents or procedures and determinations detailed in Section 5 hereof that 

may be made or addressed by resolution with respect to each series of the Bonds, to the extent 

applicable with respect to such series of the BANs, and as otherwise may be authorized or required 

by applicable law.  By resolution the Mayor and City Council may delegate to one or more City 

officials the authority to make any final determinations, approvals or decisions with respect to any 

series of the BANs.  Any resolution may specify, prescribe, determine or provide for the determination 

of, provide for, or approve or provide for the approval of, the details required or authorized by this 

Section 6 for more than one series of the BANs.   

  (b) The City hereby covenants (i) to pay from the proceeds of one or more series 

of the Bonds the principal of any series of the BANs actually issued, (ii) to the extent that interest on 

any series of the BANs is not paid from proceeds of such BANs, to pay the interest on such series of 

the BANs from the proceeds of one or more series of the Bonds, and (iii) to issue the applicable series 

of the Bonds as soon as there is no longer a reason for deferring its issuance.  This covenant shall not 

be construed to prevent the City from paying principal of and/or interest on any series of the BANs 

from sources of funds other than proceeds of the Bonds, to the extent such other proceeds are available 

for such purpose. 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 12 - 

  (c) As authorized by the Bond Anticipation Note Act, by resolution the Mayor 

and City Council may provide for the renewal of any series of the BANs at maturity with or without 

resale, together with any amendments or modifications to or replacements of such series of the BANs 

and any related documentation. 

 SECTION 7.  Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 

81 and 82A of the Charter, any other applicable law and this Ordinance, the City is hereby 

authorized and empowered to issue and sell from time to time, upon its full faith and credit, one 

or more series of its general obligation refunding bonds (each, a “series of the Refunding Bonds” 

and, collectively, the “Refunding Bonds”) for the public purpose of currently refunding or advance 

refunding all or any portion of the then-outstanding Bonds, including paying or reimbursing all or 

any portion of the following:  (i) outstanding principal, prepayment or redemption premium and/or 

interest accrued or to accrue to the date or dates of prepayment, redemption, purchase or maturity 

of the Bonds or portions thereof to be refunded, (ii) costs and expenses incurred in connection with 

the issuance, sale and delivery of such Refunding Bonds, including, without limitation, legal and 

financial costs and costs of any credit enhancement or liquidity enhancement, and (iii) to the extent 

determined by the Mayor and City Council by resolution, paying interest on such Refunding 

Bonds, in each such case (A) for the public purpose of (1) realizing savings in the total cost of debt 

service on a direct comparison or present value basis, (2) debt restructuring that reduces the total cost 

of debt service, or (3) debt restructuring that the City determines is in its best interests, is consistent 

with the City’s long-term financial plan, and realizes a financial objective of the City, including 

improving the relationship of debt service to any source of payment such as taxes, assessments or 

other charges, or (B) for any other purpose then authorized by the Refunding Act or other applicable 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 13 - 

law, as determined by the Mayor and City Council by resolution; provided that, the original 

aggregate principal amount of any such series of the Refunding Bonds shall not exceed one 

hundred thirty percent (130%) of the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 

refunded therefrom.  Any such series of the Refunding Bonds may consist of one or more bonds 

and any such bond may be issued in installment form and/or draw-down form.  Prior to the sale, 

issuance and delivery of each series of the Refunding Bonds, the Mayor and City Council shall 

adopt a resolution or resolutions authorizing such series of the Refunding Bonds and specifying, 

prescribing, determining or providing for the determination of, providing for, or approving or 

providing for the approval of, with respect to such series of the Refunding Bonds, the same types 

of matters, details, forms, documents, procedures and determinations detailed to be made in 

Section 5 hereof with respect to each series of the Bonds, to the extent applicable to such series of 

the Refunding Bonds, and as otherwise may be authorized or required by applicable law, including, 

without limitation, the purposes of the Refunding Act to be achieved by the issuance of such series 

of the Refunding Bonds, the selection of any escrow agent, verification agent, investment bidding 

agent or other service provider, the determination of the Bonds to be refunded in whole or in part 

from such series of the Refunding Bonds, and any agreements, documents or instruments necessary 

or desirable in connection with the refunding. By resolution the Mayor and City Council may 

determine or provide for the determination of how any unexpended proceeds of any series of the 

Refunding Bonds, premium realized upon sale and/or investment earnings on proceeds of such 

series of the Refunding Bonds shall be expended, which may include, without limitation, on 

refunding the applicable Bonds, on costs of issuance of such series of the Refunding Bonds or on 

debt service payable or prepayable on such series of the Refunding Bonds, to the extent permitted 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 14 - 

by applicable law.  By resolution the Mayor and City Council may delegate to one or more City 

officials the authority to make any final determinations, approvals or decisions with respect to any 

series of the Refunding Bonds.  Any resolution may specify, prescribe, determine or provide for the 

determination of, provide for, or approve or provide for the approval of, the details required or 

authorized by this Section 7 for more than one series of the Refunding Bonds. 

SECTION 8.   (a) The full faith and credit and unlimited taxing power of the City are 

hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on each series of the Bonds, the 

BANs or the Refunding Bonds actually issued, as applicable (each, a “series of the Obligations” 

and, collectively, the “Obligations”), when due and to the imposition of the taxes hereinbelow 

described as and when such taxes may become necessary in order to provide sufficient funds to 

meet the debt service requirements of each series of the Obligations.  Subject to the further 

provisions of this Section 8, the City hereby covenants with the registered owners of the 

Obligations of each series to impose ad valorem taxes on all real and tangible personal property in 

the City that is subject to assessment for unlimited municipal taxation at a rate and in an amount 

sufficient to pay the principal of and the interest on the Obligations in each fiscal year in which 

any of the Obligations are outstanding and to take any further action that may be lawfully 

appropriate from time to time during the period that the Obligations of such series remain 

outstanding and unpaid to provide the funds necessary to pay promptly the principal thereof and 

the interest due thereon.  If the proceeds from the taxes so imposed in any such fiscal year are 

inadequate for such payment, additional taxes shall be imposed in the succeeding fiscal year to 

make up such deficiency. 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 15 - 

  (b) The foregoing provisions shall not be construed so as to prohibit the City 

from paying the principal of and interest on the Obligations of any series from the proceeds of the 

sale of any other obligations of the City or from any other funds legally available for that purpose 

(including, without limitation, with respect to any BANs, from the proceeds of any Bonds and, 

with respect to any Bonds, from the proceeds of any Refunding Bonds).  Pursuant to the authority 

of Section 82A of the Charter, by resolution the Mayor and City Council may provide that all or a 

portion of the debt service on the allocable portion of any series of the Obligations shall be payable 

in the first instance from specified revenues or other moneys identified in such resolution, to the extent 

available for such purpose.  Within the limitations of any applicable Maryland or federal law 

(including, without limitation, the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations 

issued thereunder), the City may apply to the payment of the principal of or interest on the 

Obligations of any series any funds received by it from the State of Maryland or the United States 

of America, or any governmental agency or instrumentality, or from any other source, if the funds 

are granted or paid to the City for the purpose of assisting the City in accomplishing the 

components of Costs of the Projects which the Obligations of such series are issued to finance, 

reimburse or refinance or are otherwise available for such purpose, and to the extent of any such 

funds received or receivable as described in this subsection (b) in any fiscal year, the taxes hereby 

required to be imposed may be reduced proportionately.   

 SECTION 9.     By resolution, the Mayor and City Council may make any appropriate 

arrangements (including, without limitation, by authorizing one or more appropriate officials to make 

any elections, designations, determinations or filings on the City’s behalf) in the event the right of any 

registered owner of any Obligation to put or cause the prepayment or redemption of such Obligation 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 16 - 

at its option, or any change in the interest rate of an Obligation, or any other modification of an 

Obligation could lead to a reissuance of such Obligation for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986, as amended, and the U.S. Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 SECTION 10.    By resolution the Mayor and City Council may determine that any of the 

Bonds, the BANs or the Refunding Bonds authorized hereby may be consolidated with any bonds, 

bond anticipation notes and/or refunding bonds authorized by the Mayor and City Council and issued 

as a single series of bonds, bond anticipation notes and/or refunding bonds. 

 SECTION 11. By resolution the Mayor and City Council may make or authorize any 

modifications to (i) any series of the Obligations once issued, and (ii) any related documentation, 

certificates or instruments, unless under applicable law the proposed modifications require action by 

ordinance in addition to or in place of a resolution. 

 SECTION 12.   With respect to any series of the Obligations, the Mayor and City Council by 

resolution may delegate to one or more specified officials or employees the authority to negotiate, 

approve, execute and deliver, as applicable, any documents, certificates or instruments relating to 

such Obligations or to take other actions with respect thereto.  The following City officials and 

employees:  the Mayor, the City Administrator, the Treasurer, the Director of Administrative 

Services, the Comptroller, the City Clerk and all other appropriate officials and employees of the City 

are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to (i) take any and all action necessary to complete 

and close the sale, issuance and delivery of the Bonds, the BANs and the Refunding Bonds, (ii) 

negotiate, approve, execute and deliver all documents, certificates and instruments necessary or 

appropriate in connection with any such sale, issuance and delivery,  and (iii) carry out the transactions 

contemplated by this Ordinance, any ordinance amendatory of or supplemental to this Ordinance, any 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 17 - 

resolution adopted in furtherance of this Ordinance, and any documents, certificates or instruments 

executed and delivered in connection with any series of the Obligations, all to the extent any particular 

action is within the scope of such official’s or employee’s authority and such authorization has not 

been delegated to one or more specified City officials or employees by ordinance or resolution.  

 SECTION 13. The title of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be, and is, a fair summary of 

this Ordinance for publication and all other purposes. 

 SECTION 14. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed in order to 

effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. 

 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



__________________ 

Underlining = material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strikethrough = material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

- 18 - 

 SECTION 15.  This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its passage 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 82A of the Charter, subject to the petition-to-referendum 

provisions of Section 82A(c) of the Charter. 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF    

      CUMBERLAND 

 

 

(SEAL)     __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss 

      Mayor  

 

ATTEST:       

 

 

______________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk 

 

 

Introduced: ______________________, 2020 

 

Passed:  ______________________, 202__ 

 

 Votes for passage:_________________ 

 Votes against passage: _____________ 

 

 

Effective: ______________________, 2021 

 

#219821;10002.073 



File Attachments for Item:

. Ordinance No. 3882 (1st reading) - authorizing the issuance and sale of (1) general obligation refunding 

bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $42,260,000 to refund in whole or in part (A) the 

City's outstanding 2011 through 2019 Community Development Administration (CDA) loans and (B) 

certain other outstanding general obligation bonds, and (2) general obligation bonds to subsequently 

refund any general obligation refunding bonds identified in (1) that are actually issued



__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  3882 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND ENTITLED 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE AND EMPOWER MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF CUMBERLAND (THE “CITY”) TO ISSUE AND SELL FROM TIME TO TIME, 

UPON ITS FULL FAITH AND CREDIT, GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS IN ONE OR MORE SERIES IN AN ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED FORTY-TWO MILLION TWO HUNDRED SIXTY 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($42,260,000) (THE “ORIGINAL REFUNDING BONDS”), THE 

PROCEEDS OF THE SALE THEREOF TO BE USED AND APPLIED FOR THE PUBLIC 

PURPOSE OF CURRENTLY REFUNDING OR ADVANCE REFUNDING IN WHOLE 

OR IN PART ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE CITY’S THEN-OUTSTANDING 2011 

INFRASTRUCTURE BOND, 2012 INFRASTRUCTURE BOND, 2014 

INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2015 INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2017 

INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2018 INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2019 

INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2017 TAXABLE BONDS AND/OR 2017 TAX-EXEMPT 

BONDS IDENTIFIED HEREIN, INCLUDING PAYING ISSUANCE AND OTHER 

RELATED COSTS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ISSUE AND SELL FROM TIME TO 

TIME, UPON ITS FULL FAITH AND CREDIT, GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS IN ONE OR MORE SERIES (THE “SUBSEQUENT REFUNDING BONDS” 

AND, TOGETHER WITH THE ORIGINAL REFUNDING BONDS, THE “BONDS”) IN 

ORDER TO CURRENTLY REFUND OR ADVANCE REFUND ANY OF THE 

ORIGINAL REFUNDING BONDS ISSUED PURSUANT TO THIS ORDINANCE, 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 2 - 

INCLUDING PAYING ISSUANCE AND OTHER RELATED COSTS, PROVIDED 

THAT, THE ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF ANY SUCH SERIES 

OF SUBSEQUENT REFUNDING BONDS SHALL NOT EXCEED ONE HUNDRED 

THIRTY PERCENT (130%) OF THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE 

ORIGINAL REFUNDING BONDS REFUNDED THEREFROM; PROVIDING THAT 

THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY (THE “MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL”) BY RESOLUTION SHALL DETERMINE, APPROVE OR PROVIDE FOR 

VARIOUS MATTERS RELATING TO THE AUTHORIZATION, SALE, SECURITY, 

ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, PAYMENT, REDEMPTION OR PREPAYMENT OF AND 

FOR EACH SERIES OF THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE IMPOSITION OF AD 

VALOREM TAXES SUFFICIENT FOR, AND PLEDGING THE FULL FAITH AND 

CREDIT AND UNLIMITED TAXING POWER OF THE CITY TO, THE PAYMENT OF 

DEBT SERVICE ON THE BONDS; PROVIDING THAT DEBT SERVICE ON THE 

BONDS MAY ALSO BE PAID FROM OTHER LAWFULLY AVAILABLE REVENUE 

SOURCES; PROVIDING THAT CERTAIN ACTIONS MAY BE TAKEN OR PROVIDED 

FOR BY RESOLUTION IN CONNECTION WITH THE REISSUANCE OR 

MODIFICATION OF ANY OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL DETAILS 

AND MATTERS RELATING TO ANY SERIES OF THE BONDS ISSUED TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION TO BE DETERMINED OR 

PROVIDED FOR BY RESOLUTION UNLESS A DETERMINATION BY ORDINANCE 

IS OTHERWISE REQUIRED; PROVIDING THAT ANY OF THE BONDS MAY BE 

CONSOLIDATED WITH OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY AND ISSUED AS A 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 3 - 

SINGLE SERIES; AUTHORIZING, DIRECTING AND EMPOWERING CITY 

OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS TO THE BONDS TO BE 

MADE BY RESOLUTION UNLESS ANOTHER ACTION IS REQUIRED; 

PROVIDING THAT THIS TITLE IS A FAIR SUMMARY OF THIS ORDINANCE; 

PROVIDING THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE 

LIBERALLY CONSTRUED; AND OTHERWISE GENERALLY RELATING TO THE 

ISSUANCE, SALE, DELIVERY AND PAYMENT OF AND FOR THE BONDS. 

RECITALS 

 

1. Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, a municipal corporation of the State of 

Maryland (the “City”), and a municipality within the meaning of the Enabling Act and the Refunding 

Act identified below, is authorized and empowered by Sections 19-301 to 19-309, inclusive, of the 

Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (previously codified as Sections 31 

to 37, inclusive, of Article 23A of the Annotated Code of Maryland), as replaced, supplemented 

or amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter of the City, as replaced, 

supplemented or amended (the “Charter”), to borrow money for any proper public purpose and to 

evidence such borrowing by the issuance and sale of its general obligation bonds, notes or other 

evidences of indebtedness.  Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter provide that any general obligation 

bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness may be sold at public sale or at private sale.  

Section 19-207 of the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland (previously 

codified as Section 24 of Article 31 of the Annotated Code of Maryland), as replaced, 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 4 - 

supplemented or amended (the “Refunding Act”), authorizes the City to issue general obligation 

refunding bonds to refund any bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness.  Pursuant to the 

Refunding Act, the procedures for the issuance of refunding bonds shall be the same as those 

applicable to the bonds being refunded, except that refunding bonds may be sold at a private sale, 

without soliciting bids, if the City determines in a public meeting that such procedure is in the 

public interest. 

2. Sections 4-101 through 4-255 of the Housing and Community Development Article 

of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as replaced, supplemented or amended (the “CDA Act”), 

authorizes the Community Development Administration (the “Administration”), a governmental 

unit in the Division of Development Finance of the Department of Housing and Community 

Development, a principal department of the government of the State of Maryland, to provide 

financial assistance to political subdivisions and municipal corporations to finance or refinance, 

among other things, infrastructure projects and to establish a capital reserve fund in connection 

therewith. 

3. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, the CDA Act, 

Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3693, passed by the Mayor and City 

Council, the governing body of the City (the “Mayor and City Council”), on June 7, 2011 and 

effective pursuant to the CDA Act on June 7, 2011 (“Ordinance No. 3693”), the City issued to the 

Administration on August 31, 2011 its Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure 

Bond, 2011 Series A in the original aggregate principal amount of $11,415,000 (the “2011 

Infrastructure Bond”). 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 5 - 

4. Proceeds of the 2011 Infrastructure Bond, together with other funds, were applied 

to (i) refund the then-outstanding 1999 Bond, 2005 Bond, 2006 Bond and 2007 Bond identified in 

Ordinance No. 3693, and thereby refinance costs of the projects identified in Ordinance No. 3693 

that were originally financed or refinanced from proceeds of the 1999 Bond, the 2005 Bond, the 

2006 Bond and the 2007 Bond, and (ii) pay costs of issuance of the 2011 Infrastructure Bond. 

5. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the CDA Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3723, passed by the Mayor and City Council on September 25, 

2012 and effective pursuant to the CDA Act on September 25, 2012 (“Ordinance No. 3723”), the 

City issued to the Administration on December 19, 2012 its Mayor and City Council of 

Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2012 Series B in the original principal amount of $1,515,491.29 

(the “2012 Infrastructure Bond”). 

6. Ordinance No. 3723 authorized proceeds of the 2012 Infrastructure Bond to be 

applied for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing, 

reimbursing or refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows: (A) Water Main 

Replacements, which generally involves water main replacements for streets including, but not 

limited to, sections of Michigan Avenue, Kentucky Avenue, Centre Street, Lafayette Street and 

Virginia Avenue, (B) Replacement of Hydrants and Valves, which generally involves the 

replacement of hydrants and valves throughout the City of Cumberland, (C) East Side Station Roof 

Replacement, (D) Fort Hill Reservoir Valve Replacement, (E) Upgrade of Water System Cross 

Connection Program, (E) New Chlorine Feed and Storage Facility, which generally involves 

construction of such new facility, (F) Water Filtration Plant Outfall Relocation Project, and (G) 

Memorial Campus Facility Demolition, together with, in each such case as is applicable with 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 6 - 

respect to the projects described in clauses (i)(A) through (G), to acquire or pay for, as applicable, 

the acquisition of improved or unimproved land, necessary property rights and equipment, related 

site and utility improvements, and related planning, design, architectural, engineering, acquisition, 

demolition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, renovation, repair, removal, construction 

management, installation, improving, furnishing and equipping expenses and other related 

expenses, paving, and functionally related renovation or rehabilitation activities necessary at the 

locations or facilities at which such undertakings occur, to the extent not explicitly identified in 

clauses (i)(A) through (G) (collectively, the “2012 Infrastructure Projects”), (ii) funding a portion 

of a capital reserve fund, and/or (iii) paying issuance and other costs related to the 2012 

Infrastructure Bond.  The clause (E) reference was inadvertently used to distinguish two different 

identifiers of the 2012 Infrastructure Projects in Ordinance No. 3723. 

7. Pursuant to authority of the CDA Act, the Enabling Act, Sections 81 and 82A of 

the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3744, passed by the Mayor and City Council on May 21, 2013 and 

effective pursuant to the CDA Act on May 21, 2013 (“Ordinance No. 3744”), the City 

supplemented and amended Ordinance No. 3723 to modify the definition of the 2012 Infrastructure 

Projects and provide that proceeds of the 2012 Infrastructure Bond may be applied for (i) financing 

or refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows: (A) Water Main Replacements, which 

generally involves water main replacements for streets including, but not limited to, sections of 

Michigan Avenue, Kentucky Avenue, Centre Street, Lafayette Street and Virginia Avenue, (B) 

Other Street Improvement Projects, (C) Replacement of Hydrants and Valves, which generally 

involves the replacement of hydrants and valves throughout the City of Cumberland, (D) East Side 

Station Roof Replacement, (E) Fort Hill Reservoir Valve Replacement, (F) Upgrade of Water 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 7 - 

System Cross Connection Program, (G) New Chlorine Feed and Storage Facility, which generally 

involves construction of such new facility, (H) Water Filtration Plant Outfall Relocation Project, 

(I) Memorial Campus Facility Demolition, (J) Wastewater Treatment Plant and System 

Improvements, and (K) Water Treatment Plant and System Improvements, together with, in each 

such case as is applicable with respect to the projects described in clauses (i)(A) through (K), to 

acquire or pay for, as applicable, the acquisition of improved or unimproved land, necessary 

property rights and equipment, related site and utility improvements, and related planning, design, 

architectural, engineering, acquisition, demolition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 

renovation, repair, removal, construction management, installation, improving, furnishing and 

equipping expenses and other related expenses, paving, repaving, sidewalk, curb, gutter and drain 

work, and functionally related renovation or rehabilitation activities necessary at the locations or 

facilities at which such undertakings occur, to the extent not explicitly identified in clauses (i)(A) 

through (K), (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund and/or (iii) paying issuance and other 

costs related to the 2012 Infrastructure Bond. 

8. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the CDA Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3757, passed by the Mayor and City Council on May 6, 2014 

and effective pursuant to the CDA Act on May 6, 2014 (“Ordinance No. 3757”), the City issued 

to the Administration on August 28, 2014 its (i) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

Infrastructure Bond, 2014 Series A-1 in the original principal amount of $1,461,417 (the “2014 

Infrastructure A-1 Bond”), (ii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2014 

Series A-2 in the original principal amount of $915,000 (the “2014 Infrastructure A-2 Bond”), and 

(iii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2014 Series A-3 in the original 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 8 - 

principal amount of $5,143,583 (the “2014 Infrastructure A-3 Bond” and, together with the 2014 

Infrastructure A-1 Bond and the 2014 Infrastructure A-2 Bond, the “2014 Infrastructure Bonds”). 

9. Ordinance No. 3757 authorized proceeds of the 2014 Infrastructure Bonds to be 

applied for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing or 

refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows: (A) Improvements to the Water System 

and the Sewer System, including (without limitation) acquisition of vehicles, pump and motor 

upgrades, cross-connection program activities, detection improvements and upgrades, digester 

repairs, sewer replacements, flood control concrete repairs, pump station control upgrades, and 

improvement or replacement of water mains, hydrants and valves, (B) Facility and Property 

Improvements, including (without limitation) at City Hall, in the Municipal Services Center, at the 

Central Services building, at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, in Constitution Park, and at 

municipal pools, (C) Information Systems Improvements and Equipment, (D) Other Street 

Improvements, including (without limitation) bridge and intersection light improvements, and (E) 

Acquisition of New and/or Replacement Vehicles and Equipment, including (without limitation) 

for emergency services providers, for public works purposes, and for utility system purposes, 

together with, in each such case as is applicable with respect to the projects described in clauses 

(i)(A) through (E), the acquisition or payment for, as applicable, improved or unimproved land, 

necessary property rights and equipment, related site and utility improvements, and related 

planning, design, architectural, engineering, acquisition, demolition, construction, reconstruction, 

rehabilitation, renovation, repair, removal, construction management, permitting, installation, 

improvement, furnishing and equipping expenses and other related expenses, paving, repaving, 

sidewalk, curb, gutter and drain work, and functionally related activities necessary at the locations 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 9 - 

or facilities at which such undertakings occur, to the extent not explicitly identified in clauses 

(i)(A) through (E), (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund, and/or (iii) paying issuance and 

other costs related to the 2014 Infrastructure Bonds. 

10. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the CDA Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3777, passed by the Mayor and City Council on June 2, 2015 

and effective pursuant to the CDA Act on June 2, 2015 (“Ordinance No. 3777”), the City issued 

to the Administration on August 27, 2015 its (i) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

Infrastructure Bond, 2015 Series A-1 in the original principal amount of $601,970.08 (the “2015 

Infrastructure A-1 Bond”) and (ii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 

2015 Series A-2 in the original principal amount of $2,559,520.56 (the “2015 Infrastructure A-2 

Bond” and, together with the 2015 Infrastructure A-1 Bond, the “2015 Infrastructure Bonds”). 

11. Ordinance No. 3777 authorized proceeds of the 2015 Infrastructure Bonds to be 

applied for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing or 

refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows: (A) Improvements to the Water System 

and the Sewer System, (B) Facility and Property Improvements, (C) Information Systems 

Improvements and Equipment, (D) Other Street Improvements, and (E) Acquisition of New and/or 

Replacement Vehicles and Equipment, together with, in each such case as is applicable with 

respect to the projects described in clauses (i)(A) through (E), the acquisition or payment for, as 

applicable, improved or unimproved land, necessary property rights and equipment, related site 

and utility improvements, and related planning, design, architectural, engineering, acquisition, 

demolition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, renovation, repair, removal, construction 

management, permitting, installation, improvement, furnishing and equipping expenses and other 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 10 - 

related expenses, paving, repaving, sidewalk, curb, gutter and drain work, and functionally related 

activities necessary at the locations or facilities at which such undertakings occur, (ii) funding a 

portion of a capital reserve fund, and/or (iii) paying issuance and other costs related to the 2015 

Infrastructure Bonds.   

12. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the CDA Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3820, passed by the Mayor and City Council on June 6, 2017 

and effective pursuant to the CDA Act on June 6, 2017 (“Ordinance No. 3820”), the City issued 

to the Administration on August 2, 2017 its (i) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

Infrastructure Bond, 2017 Series A-1 in the original principal amount of $450,000 (the “2017 

Infrastructure A-1 Bond”) and (ii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 

2017 Series A-2 in the original principal amount of $750,000 (the “2017 Infrastructure A-2 Bond” 

and, together with the 2017 Infrastructure A-2 Bond, the “2017 Infrastructure Bonds”). 

13. Ordinance No. 3820 authorized proceeds of the 2017 Infrastructure Bonds to be 

applied for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing or 

refinancing of the costs of the purchase/acquisition of (A) information technology improvements, 

equipment and software, and (B) new and/or replacement vehicles and equipment (including heavy 

duty vehicles and equipment), (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund, and/or (iii) paying 

issuance and other costs related to the 2017 Infrastructure Bonds. 

14. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the CDA Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3840, passed by the Mayor and City Council on June 19, 2018 

and effective pursuant to the CDA Act on June 19, 2018 (“Ordinance No. 3840”), the City issued 

to the Administration on August 30, 2018 its (i) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 11 - 

Infrastructure Bond, 2018 Series A-1 in the original principal amount of $525,894.43 (the “2018 

Infrastructure A-1 Bond”), (ii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2018 

Series A-2 in the original principal amount of $646,000 (the “2018 Infrastructure A-2 Bond”), and 

(iii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2018 Series A-3 in the original 

principal amount of $1,274,706.97 (the “2018 Infrastructure A-3 Bond” and, together with the 

2018 Infrastructure A-1 Bond and the 2018 Infrastructure A-2 Bond, the “2018 Infrastructure 

Bonds”). 

15. Ordinance No. 3840 authorized proceeds of the 2018 Infrastructure Bonds to be 

applied for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing and/or 

refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows:  (A) information technology 

improvements, equipment and software, (B) new and/or replacement vehicles and equipment 

(including heavy duty vehicles and equipment), (C) facility and property improvements (including, 

without limitation, HVAC units for the Municipal Service Center), (D) water and wastewater 

filtration plant improvements, and/or (E) water distribution infrastructure, waterline, valve, meter 

and dam design and improvement/replacement, together with, in each such case as is applicable 

with respect to the projects described in clauses (i)(A) through (E), the acquisition or payment for, 

as applicable, improved or unimproved land, necessary property rights and equipment, related site 

and utility improvements, and related planning, design, architectural, engineering, bidding, 

permitting, acquisition, demolition, removal, construction, reconstruction, expansion, 

rehabilitation, renovation, repair, construction management, installation, improvement, furnishing 

and equipping expenses and other related expenses, paving, repaving, sidewalk, curb, gutter and 

drain work, landscaping, and functionally related activities necessary at the locations or facilities 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 12 - 

at or near which such undertakings occur, (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund, and/or 

(iii) paying issuance and other costs related to the 2018 Infrastructure Bonds. 

16. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the CDA Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter, and Ordinance No. 3858, passed by the Mayor and City Council on September 3, 

2019 and effective pursuant to the CDA Act on September 3, 2019 (“Ordinance No. 3858”), the 

City issued to the Administration on November 21, 2019 its (i) Mayor and City Council of 

Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2019 Series B-1 in the original principal amount of $252,995.32 

(the “2019 Infrastructure B-1 Bond”), (ii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure 

Bond, 2019 Series B-2 in the original principal amount of $805,076.43 (the “2019 Infrastructure 

B-2 Bond”), and (iii) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 2019 Series B-

3 in the original principal amount of $2,219,695.07 (the “2019 Infrastructure B-3 Bond” and, 

together with the 2019 Infrastructure B-1 Bond and the 2019 Infrastructure B-2 Bond, the “2019 

Infrastructure Bonds”). 

17.  Ordinance No. 3858 authorized proceeds of the 2019 Infrastructure Bonds to be 

applied for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing and/or 

refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows:  (A) office equipment and information 

technology improvements, equipment and software (including replacement of copiers and 

firewalls and upgrading a SCADA system), (B) new and/or replacement vehicles (including 

regular duty vehicles, heavy duty vehicles and a ladder truck) and equipment for use by various 

City departments, including the Police, Fire, Public Works, Vehicle Maintenance, Street, Parks & 

Recreation, Water Distribution, Sanitary Sewer, and Flood Control Departments, (C) facility 

improvements (including HVAC improvements at City Hall, garage doors at the Public Safety 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 13 - 

Building, and garage door openers, doors and hardware for the Municipal Service Center), (D) 

street lighting and street improvements (including replacement of a traffic cabinet), and/or (E) 

parking garage gate and payment collection system improvements, together with, in each such case 

as is applicable with respect to the project components described in clauses (i)(A) through (E), the 

acquisition or payment for, improved or unimproved land, necessary property rights and 

equipment, related site and utility improvements, related planning, design, architectural, 

engineering, bidding, permitting, acquisition, demolition, removal, construction, reconstruction, 

expansion, rehabilitation, renovation, repair, construction management, inspection, installation, 

improvement, furnishing and equipping expenses and other related expenses, paving, repaving, 

sidewalk, curb, gutter and drain work, landscaping, and functionally related activities necessary at 

the locations or facilities at or near which such undertakings occur, administrative, financial and 

legal expenses, and related or similar costs, and any such costs that may represent the Issuer’s 

share or contribution to such undertaking, (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund and/or 

other reserves required by the Administration under the Program identified in subsection (b) 

below, and/or (iii) paying issuance and other costs related to the 2019 Infrastructure Bonds. 

18. The 2011 Infrastructure Bond matures on May 1, 2032.  At any time on or after 

June 1, 2021, the 2011 Infrastructure Bond is subject to prepayment at the option of the City, in 

whole or in part, in an amount equal to the principal amount to be prepaid plus accrued interest to 

the date fixed for redemption of the Administration’s corresponding bonds, in accordance with the 

terms of a Repayment Agreement dated as of August 1, 2011 between the City and the 

Administration relating to the 2011 Infrastructure Bond, as amended (including, without 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 14 - 

limitation, the minimum authorized principal amount to be prepaid and requiring the payment of 

certain expenses relating to the prepayment). 

19. The 2012 Infrastructure Bond matures on May 1, 2032.  At any time on or after 

June 1, 2022, the 2012 Infrastructure Bond is subject to prepayment at the option of the City, in 

whole or in part, in an amount equal to the principal amount to be prepaid plus accrued interest to 

the date fixed for redemption of the Administration’s corresponding bonds, in accordance with the 

terms of a Repayment Agreement dated as of December 1, 2012 between the City and the 

Administration relating to the 2011 Infrastructure Bond (including, without limitation, the 

minimum authorized principal amount to be prepaid and requiring the payment of certain expenses 

relating to the prepayment). 

20. The 2014 Infrastructure A-1 Bond matures on May 1, 2024.  The 2014 

Infrastructure A-2 Bond matures on May 1, 2029.  The 2014 Infrastructure A-3 Bond matures on 

May 1, 2034.  At any time on or after June 1, 2023, the 2014 Infrastructure Bonds are subject to 

prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in an amount equal to the principal amount 

to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption of the Administration’s 

corresponding bonds, in accordance with the terms of a Repayment Agreement dated as of August 

1, 2014 between the City and the Administration relating to the 2014 Infrastructure Bonds 

(including, without limitation, the minimum authorized principal amount to be prepaid and 

requiring the payment of certain expenses relating to the prepayment). 

21. The 2015 Infrastructure A-1 Bond matures on April 1, 2025.  The 2015 

Infrastructure A-2 Bond matures on April 1, 2035.  At any time on or after June 1, 2024, the 2015 

Infrastructure Bonds are subject to prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in an 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 15 - 

amount equal to the principal amount to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 

redemption of the Administration’s corresponding bonds, in accordance with the terms of a 

Repayment Agreement dated as of August 1, 2015 between the City and the Administration 

relating to the 2015 Infrastructure Bonds (including, without limitation, the minimum authorized 

principal amount to be prepaid and requiring the payment of certain expenses relating to the 

prepayment). 

22. The 2017 Infrastructure A-1 Bond matures on April 1, 2024.  The 2017 

Infrastructure A-2 Bond matures on April 1, 2027.  At any time on or after June 1, 2026, the 2017 

Infrastructure Bonds are subject to prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in an 

amount equal to the principal amount to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 

redemption of the Administration’s corresponding bonds, in accordance with the terms of a 

Repayment Agreement dated as of August 1, 2017 between the City and the Administration 

relating to the 2017 Infrastructure Bonds (including, without limitation, the minimum authorized 

principal amount to be prepaid and requiring the payment of certain expenses relating to the 

prepayment). 

23. The 2018 Infrastructure A-1 Bond matures on April 1, 2025.  The 2018 

Infrastructure A-2 Bond matures on April 1, 2028.  The 2018 Infrastructure A-3 Bond matures on 

April 1, 2048.  At any time on or after June 1, 2028, the 2018 Infrastructure Bonds are subject to 

prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in an amount equal to the principal amount 

to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption of the Administration’s 

corresponding bonds, in accordance with the terms of a Repayment Agreement dated as of August 

1, 2018 between the City and the Administration relating to the 2018 Infrastructure Bonds 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 16 - 

(including, without limitation, the minimum authorized principal amount to be prepaid and 

requiring the payment of certain expenses relating to the prepayment). 

24. The 2019 Infrastructure B-1 Bond matures on April 1, 2026.  The 2019 

Infrastructure B-2 Bond matures on April 1, 2029.  The 2019 Infrastructure B-3 Bond matures on 

April 1, 2039.  At any time on or after June 1, 2029, the 2019 Infrastructure Bonds are subject to 

prepayment at the option of the City, in whole or in part, in an amount equal to the principal amount 

to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption of the Administration’s 

corresponding bonds, in accordance with the terms of a Repayment Agreement dated as of 

November 1, 2019 between the City and the Administration relating to the 2019 Infrastructure 

Bonds (including, without limitation, the minimum authorized principal amount to be prepaid and 

requiring the payment of certain expenses relating to the prepayment). 

25. Separate and apart from the Infrastructure Bonds the City has issued to the 

Administration as described in these Recitals, pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the 

Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, Ordinance No. 3793, passed by the Mayor 

and City Council on December 15, 2015 and effective on January 14, 2016 (“Ordinance No. 

3793”), as amended and supplemented by Ordinance No. 3795, passed by the Mayor and City 

Council on May 17, 2016 and effective on June 16, 2016 (together with Ordinance No. 3793, 

“Amended Ordinance No. 3793”), Ordinance No. 3624, passed on an emergency basis by the 

Mayor and City Council on August 12, 2008 and effective on September 11, 2008 (“Ordinance 

No. 3624”), as amended and supplemented by Ordinance No. 3634, passed on an emergency basis 

by the Mayor and City Council on March 3, 2009 and effective on April 2, 2009 (together with 

Ordinance No. 3624, “Amended Ordinance No. 3624”), and Resolution No. 2017-07, adopted by 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 17 - 

the Mayor and City Council on June 6, 2017 and effective on June 6, 2017 (“Resolution No. 2017-

07”), as applicable, the City issued on July 11, 2017 its Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

Taxable Redevelopment and Pension Refunding Bonds of 2017 in the original aggregate principal 

amount of $8,900,000 (the “2017 Taxable Bonds”). 

26. The portion of the 2017 Taxable Bonds issued pursuant to the authority of the 

Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, Amended Ordinance No. 

3793 and Resolution No. 2017-07 was issued for the public purpose of refunding the then-

outstanding Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Taxable Bond Anticipation Notes of 2016 

(the “2016 Taxable BANs”), which had been issued by the City on June 29, 2016 pursuant to the 

authority of the Enabling Act, Amended Ordinance No. 3793, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, 

and Resolution No. 2016-04, adopted by the Mayor and City Council on June 7, 2016 and effective 

on June 7, 2016, in order to provide interim financing for a project identified in Amended 

Ordinance No. 3793 as the “Maryland Avenue Redevelopment Project” and more particularly 

described therein, and to pay costs of issuance of the 2016 Taxable BANs. 

27. The portion of the 2017 Taxable Bonds issued pursuant to the authority of the 

Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, Amended Ordinance No. 

3624, and Resolution No. 2017-07, was issued for the public purpose of refunding a portion of the 

then-outstanding Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Taxable Pension Contribution Bonds of 

2009 (the “2009 Taxable Pension Bonds”), which had been issued by the City on May 21, 2009 

pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, Amended 

Ordinance No. 3624 and Resolution No. R2009-05, adopted by the Mayor and City Council on 

April 28, 2009 and effective on April 28, 2009, in order to finance, reimburse or refinance costs 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 18 - 

identified in Amended Ordinance No. 3624 as the “Pension Project”, including costs of issuance 

of the 2009 Taxable Pension Bonds. 

28. Concurrently with the issuance of the 2017 Taxable Bonds, pursuant to the 

authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, and 

Ordinance No. 3621, passed by the Mayor and City Council on July 29, 2008 and effective on 

August 28, 2008 (“Ordinance No. 3621”), and Resolution No. 2017-07, the City issued its Mayor 

and City Council of Cumberland Tax-Exempt Public Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2017 in 

the original aggregate principal amount of $6,155,000 (the “2017 Tax-Exempt Bonds”). 

29. The proceeds of the 2017 Tax-Exempt Bonds were applied to refund in part the 

then-outstanding Mayor and City Council of Cumberland General Obligation Public Improvement 

Bonds, 2008 Series (the “2008 Tax-Exempt Street Bonds”), which had been issued by the City on 

November 25, 2008 pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the 

Charter, Ordinance No. 3621, and a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and City Council on 

September 16, 2008 and effective on September 16, 2008, in order to finance or reimburse costs 

of certain City street, road and related improvement projects identified in Ordinance No. 3621 as 

the  “Project”, including costs of issuance of the 2008 Tax-Exempt Street Bonds. 

30. The 2017 Taxable Bonds mature on June 1, 2037.  The 2017 Taxable Bonds that 

mature on or after June 1, 2028 are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at the 

option of the City, in whole or in part, on June 1, 2027 or on any date thereafter, in the order of 

maturity specified by the City, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the 2017 

Taxable Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed, plus interest accrued to the date fixed for 

redemption, without penalty or premium. 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 19 - 

31. The 2017 Tax-Exempt Bonds mature on June 1, 2029.   The 2017 Tax-Exempt 

Bonds that mature on or after June 1, 2028 are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities 

at the option of the City, in whole or in part, on June 1, 2027 or on any date thereafter, in the order 

of maturity specified by the City, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the 

2017 Tax-Exempt Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed, plus interest accrued to the date 

fixed for redemption, without penalty or premium. 

32. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A 

of the Charter and any other applicable law, the City has determined to authorize the issuance from 

time to time of one or more series of its general obligation refunding bonds in order to currently refund 

or advance refund all or a portion of the then-outstanding and unpaid (1) (A) 2011 Infrastructure 

Bond, (B) 2012 Infrastructure Bond, (C) 2014 Infrastructure Bonds, (D) 2015 Infrastructure Bonds, 

(E) 2017 Infrastructure Bonds, (F) 2018 Infrastructure Bonds, and/or (G) 2019 Infrastructure Bonds 

(each series or subseries of the bonds listed in clauses (1)(A) through (G), individually, an 

“Infrastructure Bond” and, collectively, the “Infrastructure Bonds”), and/or (2) 2017 Taxable Bonds, 

and/or (3) 2017 Tax-Exempt Bonds.  The Infrastructure Bonds, the 2017 Taxable Bonds and the 2017 

Tax-Exempt Bonds are collectively referred to in this Ordinance as the “Prior Bonds”.  

 33. Subsequent to the issuance of any original refunding bonds authorized hereby to 

refund any of the Prior Bonds, the City may desire to currently refund or advance refund all or a 

portion of such original refunding bonds through the issuance from time to time of one or more series 

of its general obligation refunding bonds pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding 

Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter and any other applicable law. 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 20 - 

 34. The City has determined to pledge its full faith and credit and unlimited taxing power 

to the prompt payment of debt service on the original refunding bonds and the subsequent refunding 

bonds authorized hereby. 

 35. The City shall issue any original refunding bonds or subsequent refunding bonds 

authorized hereby in accordance with the terms and conditions provided for in a resolution or 

resolutions to be adopted by the Mayor and City Council.   The method of sale of any such original 

refunding bonds or subsequent refunding bonds will be determined by the Mayor and City Council 

by resolution as authorized by the Refunding Act, any other applicable law, and Section 82A of the 

Charter. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND: 

 SECTION 1. (a) The Recitals to this Ordinance are deemed a substantive part of this 

Ordinance and incorporated by reference herein.  Capitalized terms used in the Recitals to this 

Ordinance and not otherwise defined in the Sections of this Ordinance shall have the meanings given 

to such terms in the Recitals. 

  (b) References in this Ordinance to any official by title shall be deemed to refer 

(i) to any official authorized under the Charter, the code of ordinances of the City (the “City Code”) 

or other applicable law or authority to act in such titled official’s stead during the absence or disability 

of such titled official, (ii) to any person who has been elected, appointed or designated to fill such 

position in an acting or interim capacity under the Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or 

authority, (iii) to any person who serves in a “deputy,” “associate,” or “assistant” capacity as such an 

official, provided that the applicable responsibilities, rights or duties referred to herein have been 

delegated to such deputy, associate or assistant in accordance with the Charter, the City Code or other 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 21 - 

applicable law or authority, and/or (iv) to the extent an identified official commonly uses another title 

not provided for in the Charter or the City Code, the official, however known, who is charged under 

the Charter, the City Code or other applicable law or authority with the applicable responsibilities, 

rights or duties referred to herein.    

  (c) References in this Ordinance to the “principal amount” of any of the Original 

Refunding Bonds or the Subsequent Refunding Bonds (each as defined herein) shall be construed to 

mean the par amount of such Original Refunding Bonds or Subsequent Refunding Bonds, as 

applicable. 

SECTION 2. Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 

and 82A of the Charter and any other applicable law, the City hereby determines to borrow money 

and incur indebtedness in the form of general obligation refunding bonds for the public purpose of  

currently refunding or advance refunding all or any portion of the then-outstanding and unpaid Prior 

Bonds, including paying or reimbursing all or any portion of the following:  (i) outstanding principal, 

prepayment or redemption premium, and/or interest accrued or to accrue to the date or dates of 

prepayment, redemption, purchase or maturity of the Prior Bonds (or, with respect to the 

Infrastructure Bonds, the corresponding bonds of the Administration) to be refunded in whole or in 

part, (ii) costs and expenses incurred in connection with the sale, issuance and delivery of such original 

refunding bonds, including, without limitation, legal and financial costs and costs of any credit 

enhancement or liquidity enhancement, (iii) any costs required to be paid or provided for in 

connection with the refunding or prepayment of any of the Infrastructure Bonds pursuant to any 

applicable Repayment Agreements between the City and the Administration described in the Recitals 

to this Ordinance, as the same may be further amended and supplemented, and (iv) to the extent 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 22 - 

determined by the Mayor and City Council by resolution, paying interest on such original refunding 

bonds, in each such case, (A) for the public purpose of (1) realizing savings in the total cost of debt 

service on a direct comparison or present value basis, (2) debt restructuring that reduces the total cost 

of debt service, or (3) debt restructuring that the City determines is in its best interests, is consistent 

with the City’s long-term financial plan, and realizes a financial objective of the City, including 

improving the relationship of debt service to any source of payment such as taxes, assessments or 

other charges, or (B) for any other purpose then authorized by the Refunding Act or other applicable 

law (collectively, the “Original Refunding Project”). The total cost of the portion of the Original 

Refunding Project to be paid from proceeds of the Original Refunding Bonds identified in Section 3 

of this Ordinance will not exceed Forty-Two Million Two Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars 

($42,260,000).  

 SECTION 3.  To evidence the borrowing and indebtedness authorized in Section 2 of this 

Ordinance, the City, acting pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 

81 and 82A of the Charter, any other applicable law and this Ordinance, hereby determines to issue 

and sell from time to time, in one or more series, upon its full faith and credit, its general obligation 

refunding bonds in an original aggregate principal amount not to exceed Forty-Two Million Two 

Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars ($42,260,000) (each, a “series of the Original Refunding Bonds” 

and, collectively, the “Original Refunding Bonds”).  Any series of the Original Refunding Bonds may 

consist of one or more bonds and any such bond may be issued in installment form and/or draw-down 

form. 

 SECTION 4.  The proceeds of the Original Refunding Bonds shall be used and applied by the 

City exclusively and solely for the public purposes described in Section 2 of this Ordinance, unless a 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 23 - 

supplemental ordinance is enacted by the Mayor and City Council to provide for the use and 

application of such proceeds for some other proper public purpose authorized by the Enabling Act, 

the Refunding Act, the Charter and/or other applicable law. 

 SECTION 5.  Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 

and 82A of the Charter, any other applicable  law and this Ordinance, the Mayor and City Council, 

prior to the issuance, sale and delivery of each series of the Original Refunding Bonds, shall adopt a 

resolution or resolutions specifying, prescribing, determining, providing for or approving such 

matters, details, forms (including, without limitation, the form or substantially final form of the 

Original Refunding Bonds of such series), documents or procedures as may be required by the 

Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter, any other applicable law or 

this Ordinance or as the Mayor and City Council may deem appropriate for the authorization, sale, 

security, issuance, delivery, payment, prepayment or redemption of or for such series of the Original 

Refunding Bonds, including the purposes of the Refunding Act to be achieved by the issuance of such 

series of the Original Refunding Bonds.  Any such resolution may, subject to the limitations of any 

applicable law, set forth, determine or provide for the determination of, provide for, or approve or 

provide for the approval of, among other matters, as applicable, the designation of such series of the 

Original Refunding Bonds; the date of issue of such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; the 

original aggregate principal amount of such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; the denomination 

or denominations of such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; the maturity or maturities of such 

series of the Original Refunding Bonds; the principal installment or installments (including, without 

limitation, serial maturities and/or mandatory sinking fund installments) payable on such series of the 

Original Refunding Bonds; the rate or rates of interest, or the method of determining the rate or rates 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 24 - 

of interest, payable on such series of the Original Refunding Bonds, which may be fixed or variable; 

provisions for the payment of late fees, additional interest and/or penalties payable with respect to 

such series of the Original Refunding Bonds and/or adjustments to interest rates in appropriate 

circumstances; the purchase price for such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; provisions relating 

to the prepayment or redemption of such series of the Original Refunding Bonds at the City’s option 

or by mandatory sinking fund payments; provisions allowing the registered owners of such series of 

the Original Refunding Bonds to put or cause the prepayment or redemption of the same at their 

option; the manner of selling such series of the Original Refunding Bonds, which may be at a private 

sale, without soliciting bids, or at a public sale, and all matters in connection therewith, including any 

forms of documents, certificates, instruments or notices authorized or required by applicable law; 

provisions for the execution of such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; provisions for the 

appropriation, disposal and/or investment of the proceeds of such series of the Original Refunding 

Bonds; provisions for the application of unexpended proceeds, any premium paid upon sale and/or 

investment earnings on proceeds of such series of the Original Refunding Bonds, which may include, 

without limitation, on the refunding of the applicable Prior Bonds, on costs of issuance of such series 

of the Original Refunding Bonds, or on debt service payable or prepayable on such series of the 

Original Refunding Bonds, to the extent permitted by applicable law; the selection of any bond 

registrar, paying agent, escrow agent, verification consultant, escrow bidding agent or other 

appropriate service providers in connection with such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; the 

determination of the Prior Bonds to be refunded in whole or in part from such series of the Original 

Refunding Bonds; certifications, representations, determinations, designations or elections relating to 

the tax-exempt or taxable status of interest payable on such series of the Original Refunding Bonds; 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 25 - 

any agreements, documents or other instruments necessary or desirable in connection with the 

refunding; any replacements of or amendments, modifications or supplements to any agreements, 

documents, certificates or other instruments entered into between the City and the Administration or 

delivered by the City in connection with the Infrastructure Bonds; and all other terms and conditions 

pursuant to which such series of the Original Refunding Bonds will be issued, sold and delivered, 

including, without limitation, any determinations to be made or provided for by resolution as 

contemplated by Section 82A(d) of the Charter or other applicable law, to the extent not determined 

or provided for in this Ordinance.  Among other matters, the Mayor and City Council by resolution 

may authorize, approve or otherwise provide for (i) payment of any commitment fee, breakage fee or 

similar fee and any other costs (including other parties’ legal costs and expenses) payable in 

connection with any series of the Original Refunding Bonds, (ii) the obtaining of credit enhancement 

or liquidity enhancement for any series of the Original Refunding Bonds (and the negotiation, 

approval, execution and delivery of any agreements or documents relating thereto), and (iii) any other 

agreements, documents, instruments or determinations necessary or desirable to enhance the 

marketability of or as security for any series of the Original Refunding Bonds, including, without 

limitation, any ratings, any official statement or similar disclosure document or any continuing 

disclosure undertaking required to satisfy the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission 

Rule 15c2-12.  By resolution the Mayor and City Council may delegate to one or more City officials 

the authority to make any final determinations, approvals or decisions with respect to any series 

of the Original Refunding Bonds. Any resolution may specify, prescribe, determine or provide for 

the determination of, provide for, or approve or provide for the approval of, the details required or 

authorized by this Section 5 for more than one series of the Original Refunding Bonds. 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 26 - 

 SECTION 6.  Pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act, the Refunding Act, Sections 

81 and 82A of the Charter, any other applicable law and this Ordinance, the City is hereby 

authorized and empowered to issue and sell from time to time, upon its full faith and credit, one 

or more series of its general obligation refunding bonds (each, a “series of the Subsequent 

Refunding Bonds” and, collectively, the “Subsequent Refunding Bonds”), for the public purpose 

of currently refunding or advance refunding all or any portion of the then-outstanding and unpaid 

Original Refunding Bonds, including paying or reimbursing all or any portion of the following:  (i) 

outstanding principal, prepayment or redemption premium, and/or interest accrued or to accrue to the 

date or dates of prepayment, redemption, purchase or maturity of the Original Refunding Bonds (or, 

with respect to any Original Refunding Bonds that were issued to the Administration, the 

corresponding bonds of the Administration) to be refunded in whole or in part, (ii) costs and expenses 

incurred in connection with the sale, issuance and delivery of such Subsequent Refunding Bonds, 

including, without limitation, legal and financial costs and costs of any credit enhancement or liquidity 

enhancement, (iii) any costs required to be paid or provided for in connection with the refunding or 

prepayment of any of the Original Refunding Bonds that were issued to the Administration pursuant 

to any applicable repayment or other agreements entered into between the City and the Administration 

pursuant to the CDA Act, and (iv) to the extent determined by the Mayor and City Council by 

resolution, paying interest on such Subsequent Refunding Bonds, in order to realize an objective 

authorized by the Refunding Act or other applicable law, as determined by the Mayor and City 

Council by resolution; provided that, the original aggregate principal amount of any series of the 

Subsequent Refunding Bonds shall not exceed one hundred thirty percent (130%) of the 

outstanding aggregate principal amount of the Original Refunding Bonds refunded therefrom.  Any 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 27 - 

such series of the Subsequent Refunding Bonds may consist of one or more bonds and any such bond 

may be issued in installment form and/or draw-down form.  Prior to the sale, issuance and delivery 

of any series of the Subsequent Refunding Bonds, the Mayor and City Council shall adopt a 

resolution or resolutions authorizing such series of the Subsequent Refunding Bonds and 

specifying, prescribing, determining or providing for the determination of, providing for, or 

approving or approving or providing for the approval of, with respect to such series of the 

Subsequent Refunding Bonds, the same types of matters, details, forms, documents, procedures 

and determinations detailed to be made or provided for by resolution in Section 5 hereof with 

respect to each series of the Original Refunding Bonds, to the extent applicable to such series of 

the Subsequent Refunding Bonds (construing references in such Section 5 (i) to the Original 

Refunding Bonds to refer to the Subsequent Refunding Bonds, (ii) to the refunded Prior Bonds to 

refer to the refunded Original Refunding Bonds, and (iii) to the Infrastructure Bonds to refer to 

any Original Refunding Bonds issued to the Administration), and as otherwise may be authorized 

or required by applicable law.  By resolution the Mayor and City Council may delegate to one or 

more City officials the authority to make any final determinations, approvals or decisions with 

respect to any series of the Subsequent Refunding Bonds.  Any resolution may specify, prescribe, 

determine or provide for the determination of, provide for, or approve or provide for the approval of, 

the details required or authorized by this Section 6 for more than one series of the Subsequent 

Refunding Bonds. 

SECTION 7. (a) The full faith and credit and unlimited taxing power of the City are 

hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on each series of the Original 

Refunding Bonds and the Subsequent Refunding Bonds actually issued, as applicable (each, a 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 28 - 

“series of the Obligations” and, collectively, the “Obligations”), when due and to the imposition 

of the taxes hereinbelow described as and when such taxes may become necessary in order to 

provide sufficient funds to meet the debt service requirements of each series of the Obligations.  

Subject to the further provisions of this Section 7, the City hereby covenants with the registered 

owners of the Obligations of each series to impose ad valorem taxes on all real and tangible 

personal property in the City that is subject to assessment for unlimited municipal taxation at a rate 

and in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and the interest on the Obligations in each fiscal 

year in which any of the Obligations are outstanding and to take any further action that may be 

lawfully appropriate from time to time during the period that the Obligations of such series remain 

outstanding and unpaid to provide the funds necessary to pay promptly the principal thereof and 

the interest due thereon.  If the proceeds from the taxes so imposed in any such fiscal year are 

inadequate for such payment, additional taxes shall be imposed in the succeeding fiscal year to 

make up such deficiency. 

  (b) The foregoing provisions shall not be construed so as to prohibit the City 

from paying the principal of and interest on the Obligations of any series from the proceeds of the 

sale of any other obligations of the City or from any other funds legally available for that purpose 

(including, without limitation, with respect to any of the Original Refunding Bonds, from the 

proceeds of any of the Subsequent Refunding Bonds).  Pursuant to the authority of Section 82A of 

the Charter, by resolution the Mayor and City Council may provide that all or a portion of the debt 

service on the allocable portion of any series of the Obligations shall be payable in the first instance 

from specified revenues or other moneys identified in such resolution, to the extent available for such 

purpose.  Within the limitations of any applicable Maryland or federal law (including, without 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 29 - 

limitation, the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations issued thereunder), 

the City may apply to the payment of the principal of or interest on the Obligations of any series 

any funds received by it from the State of Maryland or the United States of America, or any 

governmental agency or instrumentality, or from any other source, if the funds are granted or paid 

to the City for such purpose or are otherwise available for such purpose, and to the extent of any 

such funds received or receivable in any fiscal year, the taxes hereby required to be imposed may 

be reduced proportionately.   

 SECTION 8. By resolution, the Mayor and City Council may make any appropriate 

arrangements (including, without limitation, by authorizing one or more appropriate officials to make 

any elections, designations, determinations or filings on the City’s behalf) in the event any right of 

the registered owner of an Obligation to put or cause the prepayment or redemption of such Obligation 

at its option, or any change in the interest rate of an Obligation, or any other modification to an 

Obligation could lead to a reissuance of such Obligation for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986, as amended, and the U.S. Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 SECTION 9. In addition to the matters and details authorized to be determined or provided 

for by the Mayor and City Council by resolution with respect to any series of Original Refunding 

Bonds or Subsequent Refunding Bonds pursuant to Sections 5 and/or 6 of this Ordinance, and unless 

counsel to the City, counsel to the Administration or applicable law requires any of the following 

matters or determinations be made or provided for by ordinance, to the extent any series of Original 

Refunding Bonds or Subsequent Refunding Bonds is to be sold by the City to the Administration 

pursuant to the CDA Act, by resolution the Mayor and City Council may specify, prescribe, determine 

or provide for the determination of, provide for, or approve or provide for the approval of, any matters 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 30 - 

or details authorized or required by the CDA Act, including, without limitation, the pledge of any 

moneys authorized by Section 4-229(b) of the CDA Act; the establishment and funding of, or 

covenant to fund, any reserves authorized, required or contemplated by the CDA Act; the making of 

any other covenants required by the Administration or the CDA Act; and the negotiation, approval, 

execution and delivery of any agreements, documents, certificates or instruments required by the 

Administration or authorized by the CDA Act. 

 SECTION 10.    By resolution, the Mayor and City Council may determine that any series of 

the Original Refunding Bonds or the Subsequent Refunding Bonds authorized hereby may be 

consolidated with any bonds and/or refunding bonds authorized by the Mayor and City Council and 

issued as a single series of obligations. 

 SECTION 11.   By resolution the Mayor and City Council may make or authorize any 

modifications to (i) any series of the Obligations once issued, and (ii) any related documentation, 

certificates or instruments, unless under applicable law the proposed modifications require action by 

ordinance in addition to or in place of a resolution. 

 SECTION 12.   With respect to any series of the Obligations, the Mayor and City Council by 

resolution may delegate to one or more specified officials or employees the authority to negotiate, 

approve, execute and deliver, as applicable, any documents, certificates or instruments relating to 

such Obligations or to take other actions with respect thereto.  The following City officials and 

employees:  the Mayor, the City Administrator, the Treasurer, the Director of Administrative 

Services, the Comptroller, the City Clerk and all other appropriate officials and employees of the City 

are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to (i) take any and all action necessary to complete 

and close the sale, issuance and delivery of the Original Refunding Bonds or the Subsequent 



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 31 - 

Refunding Bonds, (ii) negotiate, approve, execute and deliver all documents, certificates and 

instruments necessary or appropriate in connection with any such sale, issuance and delivery, and (iii) 

carry out the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance, any ordinance amendatory of or 

supplemental to this Ordinance, any resolution adopted in furtherance of this Ordinance, and any 

documents, certificates or instruments executed and delivered in connection with any series of the 

Obligations, all to the extent any particular action is within the scope of such official’s or employee’s 

authority and such authorization has not been delegated to one or more specified City officials or 

employees by ordinance or resolution.  

SECTION 13.   The title of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be, and is, a fair summary 

of this Ordinance for publication and all other purposes. 

 SECTION 14.    The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed in order to 

effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 15.  This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its passage 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 82A of the Charter, subject to the petition-to-referendum 

provisions of Section 82A(c) of the Charter. 

 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



 

__________________ 

Underlining : Indicates material added to this Ordinance as introduced 

Strike-through : Indicates material deleted from this Ordinance as introduced 

 

 - 32 - 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF    

      CUMBERLAND 

 

 

(SEAL)     __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss 

      Mayor  

 

ATTEST:       

 

 

______________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk 

 

 

Introduced: ___________________________________, 2020 

 

Passed:  ___________________________________, 202__ 

 

 Votes for passage:_________________ 

 Votes against passage: _____________ 

 

 

Effective: ___________________________________, 2021 

 
#219659;10002.072 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,739 - approving an amendment to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program to reduce funding to the 2020 Targeted City Foot and Bike Patrol Project by $84.00, bringing the

total 2020 CDBG allocation to $809,458



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,739                     DATE:   December 15, 2020____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following amendments to the Community Development Block Grant Program be 

and are hereby approved effective December 15, 2020: 

 

 

 

Program Current 

Award 

Amendment New Total 

Award 

2020 Targeted City Foot and Bike Patrols $5,000 ($84) $4,916 

2020 CDBG Allocation  $809,542 ($84) $809,458 

 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



 

Public Notice of Intent to Reprogram PY 2020 Community Development Block Grant Funds 

Minor Amendment #3 11202020 

City of Cumberland                    

In accordance with federal regulations governing the Consolidated Planning process, the City of 

Cumberland is notifying the public regarding a proposal to reprogram Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) funds from activities affecting the 2020 Annual Action Plan.  Reprogramming CDBG funds 

in a timely manner enables the City to comply with HUD “Timeliness” standards and allows the funds to 

be used on “shovel ready” activities.  The following decrease in funding is defined as a Minor 

Amendment.  

The changes proposed for the FY 2020 Annual Action Plan primarily involve decreasing 2020 funds 

allocated to the Targeted Foot and Bike Patrols project (SS20.061). The funds were allocated to provide 

additional police foot and bike patrols to targeted areas of the City of Cumberland to increase safety for 

residents. The original grant of $5,000 will be reduced by $84. This is in response to a reduction in the 

City’s FY2020 Community Development Block Grant allocation from $809,542 to $809,458 due to an 

error in the original formula calculation which was explained in a letter to Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

of Cumberland, dated October 22, 2020 from John Gibbs, Acting Assistant Secretary for Community 

Planning and Development, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

 

In accordance with the City of Cumberland Citizen Participation Plan 2020, no comment period is 

required as this is not a substantial amendment. This Minor Amendment to the 2020 Community 

Development Block Grant Annual Action Plan will be considered by Mayor and City Council at the 

regular meeting livestreamed on Tuesday, December 15, 2020 at 6:15 PM.    

   



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,740 - declaring 884 Sperry Terrace to be surplus property and stating the City's intent to 

transfer the property to Harold P. and Ann V. Atkins for the amount of $9,200



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,740                    DATE:      December 15, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of  a 

certain parcel of real property, together with the improvements thereon, known as 884 Sperry 

Terrace in Cumberland, MD (hereinafter referred to as the “Property”), the Property being 

more particularly described as that which was conveyed from Allegany County, Maryland to 

to Mayor and City Council of Cumberland by deed dated June 1, 2019, and recorded in the 

Land Records of Allegany County, Maryland in Book 2476, Page 218; and 

WHEREAS, the Property has been determined to be surplus property by the Mayor 

and City Council of Cumberland;  

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED, by the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, that: 

1. The Property is hereby declared to be surplus in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 1 of the Charter of the City of Cumberland; and 

2. The Mayor and City Council of Cumberland intend to transfer the Property to 

Harold P. and Ann V. Atkins for the amount of Nine Thousand, Two Hundred Dollars 

($9,200); and 

3. That after passage of twenty (20) days from the date of this Order and the 

passage of an Ordinance authorizing the execution of the Deed effecting the conveyance of the 

Property, formal transfer of the Property to Harold P. and Ann V. Atkins may proceed. 

      

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2020 

Key Staff Contact: Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services 

 

Item Title: 

Order declaring 884 Sperry Terrace to be surplus property and declaring the City's intent to transfer the 

property to Harold P. and Ann V. Atkins for the amount of $9,200 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

 

884 Sperry Terrace is a City-owned property that had to be demolished.  The Atkins' offered to pay the 

demo and asbestos abatement costs to obtain ownership of the property.  This is a good deal for the City 

and one that we would like to replicate going forward as part of our on-going efforts to eliminate blight 

and encourage neighborhood development. 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award: 

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,741 - approving budget appropriations and transfers for fiscal year 2019-2020



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     26,741                    DATE:       December 15, 2020___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the following appropriations and transfers be and are hereby approved for 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020: 

 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,742 - accepting the sole source proposal from SADA Systems, Inc., to provide a G Suite 

Enterprise Account for the City's use of Google mail and Google applications for a term of three (3) 

years, effective December 6, 2020 through December 6, 2023, in the amount not-to-exceed $65,512.20



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,742                    DATE:      December 15, 2020_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland,  

 THAT, the sole source proposal from SADA Systems, Inc., to provide a G Suite 

Enterprise Account for the City's use of Google mail and Google applications for a term 

of three (3) years, effective December 6, 2020 through December 6, 2023, be and is hereby 

accepted in the amount not-to-exceed Sixty-Five Thousand, Five Hundred Twelve 

Dollars and Twenty Cents ($65,512.20); and 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this proposal be and is hereby obtained 

through State of Maryland cooperative bid pricing.  

       

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

Funding:  City-wide distribution 



 

SADA Systems, Inc. 
G Suite 

Ordering Document 

This G Suite Ordering Document (the “Ordering Document“) and the corresponding Customer 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) between SADA Systems, Inc. and Customer (as defined below) 
governs Customer’s access to and use of the Services. Undefined capitalized terms used in 
this Ordering Document will have the meanings set forth in the Agreement. 

Customer: City of Cumberland 

Address: 57 North Liberty St 
Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Pricing 

Product Description Annual Price Quantity Amount 

Year 1  -- -- 

G Suite Enterprise Accounts $75.99 260 $19,757.40 

--  Year 1 Sub Total $19,757.40 

Year 2  -- -- 

G Suite Enterprise Accounts $83.99 260 $21,837.40 

--  Year 2 Sub Total $21,837.40 

Year 3  -- -- 

G Suite Enterprise Accounts $91.99 260 $23,917.40 

--  Year 3 Sub Total $23,917.40 

--  Sales Tax 
(not included) 

Plus Applicable Tax 

--  Grand Total $65,512.20 



*** All sales taxes, including State sales tax, Local sales tax, Federal Regulatory Assessment 
Fee, Federal Universal Service Fund and State 911 Fee, which are properly payable in 
connection with this Agreement under the Applicable law shall be paid by Customer. These 
prices may NOT include applicable taxes, electronic waste recycling fee, insurance, shipping, 
delivery, setup fees, or any cables or cabling services or material unless specifically listed 
above. 

If Customer is tax exempt, then it is incumbent upon Customer to 
declare its exemption by initializing here (Customer must initial here if 
claiming tax exempt status). 
 
Note: Fees, such as Telecom Regulatory Fees, associated with 
telephony charges stemming from Google Voice licenses (if such 
licenses are part of this Ordering Document) are not eligible for any 
exemptions. 

 

Contract Term: From 12/6/2020 until 12/6/2023 

 

Invoices and Payment Schedule 

Invoice Invoice Amount 

First invoice will be issued at the beginning of the Contract Term $19,757.40 

11 months after agreement execution $21,837.40 

23 months after agreement execution $23,917.40 

SADA will invoice Customer for all amounts due under any executed Ordering Document in 
accordance with the schedule set forth above. Each invoice submitted to Customer pursuant to 
this Ordering Document will be due and payable by Customer within 30 days of receipt. 
Payment is accepted by check or ACH/EFT in U.S. Dollars. 

Bank Information 
ACH or ETF: 
Wells Fargo Bank 
Swift Code: WFBIUS6 
464 California St. San Francisco, CA 
94104 
Routing Number: 121042882 
Bank Account Name: SADA 
Systems, Inc. 

 

Remittance Address: 
SADA Systems, Inc 
5250 Lankershim Blvd., Suite 620 
North Hollywood, CA 91601 
ATTN: Accounting 
accounting@sadasystems.com 



Bank Account Number: 7757670067 

 

Customer Information 

Accounts Payable Information 

Full Name (required) Sarah Gyger 

Phone 3017596403 

Email Address (required) accounts.payable@cumberlandmd.gov 

Technical Administrator Contact Information 

Full Name (required) Johnna Byers 

Phone 3017596441 

Off Domain Email Address (eg, 
john.smith@gmail.com or 
IT123@yahoo.com) 

johnna@byersfamily.org 

Email Address (required) johnna.byers@cumberlandmd.gov 

 

Terms and Conditions 

1) Customer agrees to the terms of the Customer Agreement accessible at the Link below, of 
which this Ordering Document is a part. 
 https://sada.com/agreements/gafb/gafb-v11.pdf 

2) Customer agrees that all licenses will be 
provisioned on the primary domain, and that the 
primary domain is accurate as listed here .... 

cumberlandmd.gov 

3) Additional licenses purchased during the Contract Term will be priced at the price per month 
(for any sku listed above) multiplied by the number of partial or whole months remaining in the 
Contract Term. 

 

4) Payment for additional licenses purchased during the Contract Term will be due in full upon 
receipt of an invoice, and will be exempt from the Payment Schedule above. 

 

https://sada.com/agreements/gafb/gafb-v11.pdf


 

CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS READ THIS ORDERING DOCUMENT AND 
THE CORRESPONDING AGREEMENT, AND UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TO BE 
LEGALLY BOUND BY THEIR TERMS. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Ordering Document has been executed by the parties through 
their duly authorized officers. 

 

SADA Systems, Inc. 

 

City of Cumberland 

  

  

Signature Signature 

  

Name Name 

  

Title Title 

  

Date Date  

    

    

    

    

    

    



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,743 - authorizing execution of a third Amendment to Purchase Agreement with Allegany 

Junction Limited Partnership regarding the sale of land located at 100 Reynolds Street, to allow for two 

(2) additional 30-day closing extensions



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,743            DATE:   December 15, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a third Amendment to 

Purchase Agreement by and between the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland and 

Allegany Junction Limited Partnership, pertaining to the Purchase Agreement dated April 

7, 2020, subsequent first Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated July 7, 2020, and 

subsequent second Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated November 4, 2020, 

regarding the sale of a certain parcel of land located at 100 Reynolds Street, to allow for 

two (2) additional 30-day Closing Extensions. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 THIS AMENDMENT TO THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is 
made and entered into as of December ____, 2020 by and between Mayor and City Council of 
Cumberland (the “Seller”) and Allegany Junction Limited Partnership (the “Buyer”). 

RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Seller and Buyer entered into a Purchase Agreement dated April 7, 2020, as 
amended on July 7, 2020 and November 4, 2020 (the “Agreement”) with respect to the sale of a 
certain parcel of land located at 100 Reynolds Street, Cumberland, Maryland 21502; 

WHEREAS, Buyer exercised all of its Closing Extension options in accordance with 
Paragraph 5 of the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, Buyer and Seller have worked diligently since executing the Agreement to 
but require additional time to complete the transaction;  

WHEREAS, Buyer has paid Seventy-Two Thousand Dollars in earnest deposits 
($72,000.00) as of the date of full execution of this Amendment; and 

NOW THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer to amend the Agreement as follows:  

1. Paragraph 5 is amended to add an additional two (2) Closing Extensions. Paragraph 5 
hereby reads as follows: 
 
“The Buyer may have ten (10) options to extend the date of Closing for thirty (30) days in 
each instance by notifying the Seller in writing in advance of the then-applicable date for 
Closing and paying additional earnest money deposits, each in the amount of One 
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00) the said payment(s) hereinafter being referred 
to as the (“Subsequent Earnest Deposit(s)”). The Subsequent Earnest Deposit(s) shall be 
remitted to the Title Company to be held in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Upon the exercise of the first option to extend, the Initial Earnest Deposit shall become 
non-refundable.” 

 
 

The terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement, as amended, shall remain in full force and 
effect, except as amended by this Amendment.  

 

[Signatures on the following page] 

 

 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,744 - authorizing execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging that the Deed of 

Trust made by Rebecca Dorothy D. Jackson to the City, dated march 10, 2008 (Deed Book 1478, Page 

139)  pertaining to 10 Decatur Street has been fully paid and the lien is therefore released



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,744            DATE:   December 15, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Certificate of 

Satisfaction acknowledging that the Deed of Trust made by Rebecca Dorothy D. Jackson 

to the City, dated March 10, 2008, (Allegany County Land Records Book 1478, Page 139) 

pertaining to 10 Decatur Street has been fully paid, and stating that the lien is hereby 

released. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2020 

Key Staff Contact: Kathy McKenney, Community Development 

 

Item Title: 

10 Decatur Street Certificate of Satisfaction 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

A Certificate of Satisfaction is needed to confirm that all obligations related to the five-year forgivable 
loan, provided to Dorothy D. Johnson on March 10, 2008 for her residence at 10 Decatur Street in the 
amount of $3,658.00 have been met. (Book 1478 Page 139)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award: $3,658.00 (2008) Now satisfied 

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference:  Book 1478 Page 139 Allegany County Land Records 

























File Attachments for Item:

. Order 26,745 - authorizing execution of a Grant Agreement on behalf of the Downtown Development 

Commission with Maryland Heritage Areas Authority to accept $20,000 in grant funding for the 

Baltimore Street Access Project (12-16-M), with the condition that the City provides matching funding 

for the full cost of the grant



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,745            DATE:   December 15, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Grant Agreement by 

an between the Maryland Heritage Areas Authority and the Mayor and City Council of 

Cumberland to accept Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) in grant funding for the 

Baltimore Street Access Project (City Project 12-16-M), with the condition that the City 

provides matching funding for the full cost of the grant. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date:  12/15/2020 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, Derrik Grimm 

 

Item Title:  Maryland Heritage Areas Authority Grant Program Grant Agreement, City Project 12-16-M 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

This is a grant agreement between the Maryland Heritage Areas Authority Grant Program and the 
Mayor & City Council of Cumberland for the Baltimore Street Access Project (City Project 12-16-M) in 
the amount of $20,000.00. The grant award will not exceed $20,000.00 and is awarded under the 
condition that the Mayor & City Council of Cumberland will provide a match for the full cost of the grant 
award ($20,000.00) to be used with the project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award: 

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: 















































File Attachments for Item:

 Order 26,746 - accepting the sole source proposal from Stryker Medical to provide three (3) LUCAS 

mechanical CPR devices w/ annual service agreement and two (2) Life-Pak 1500 cardiac 

monitor/defibrillators with annual service agreement for a cost not-to-exceed $107,476.94.  Funding for 

this equipment will be provided through CARES Act funding.



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,746            DATE:   December 15, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the sole source proposal from Stryker Medical, P.O. Box 93308, Chicago, 

IL 60673-3308, to provide three (3) LUCAS mechanical CPR devices and two (2) Life-Pak 

1500 cardiac monitor/defibrillators and service agreements for a total cost not to exceed 

$107,476.94 be and is hereby accepted as follows: 

 

Three (3) LUCAS mechanical CPR devices  ……………………………… $ 43,421.90 

Annual on-site maintenance service agreement  ……………………………..   14,320.80 

 SUBTOTAL ………………….………………………………………… $ 57,742.70 

 

Two (2) Life-Pak 1500 cardiac monitor/defibrillator  ……………………. $ 37,494.24 

Annual on-site maintenance agreement ……………………………………    12,240.00 

 SUBTOTAL  ………………………………………………………… $ 49,734.24 

 

 TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED ……………………………………….. $107,476.94 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that funding for this equipment shall be provided by 

CARES Act Funding. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 













File Attachments for Item:

 Order 26,747 - authorizing the Fire Chief to accept a MD Institute for Emergency Medical Services 

Systems (MIEMSS) Grant in the amount of up to $17,120.86 for two (2) Life-Pak 1500 cardiac 

monitor/defibrillators, to be purchased on a sole source basis from Stryker Medical, with the intent that 

UPMC Western MD will be gifting/reimbursing the City for approximately $20,373.38, which is the 

balance of the cost



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,747            DATE:   December 15, 2020  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Fire Chief be and is hereby authorized to accept a MD Institute for 

Emergency Medical Services Systems (MIEMSS) Grant in the amount of up to Seventeen 

Thousand, One Hundred Twenty Dollars and Eighty-Six Cents ($17,120.86) for two (2) 

Life-Pak 1500 cardiac monitor/defibrillators, to be purchased on a sole source basis from 

Stryker Medical and with the intent that UPMC Western MD will be gifting/reimbursing 

the City for approximately Twenty Thousand, Three Hundred Seventy-Three Dollars and 

Thirty-Eight Cents ($20,373.38), which is the balance of the cost of the equipment. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 
 

Stryker Cost for equipment $37,494.24 

MEIMSS Grant Award (17,120.86) 

UPMC WMD Donation (20,373.38) 

Final Cost to City $0 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
















	Top
	.	Report - Maintenance Division Monthly Report - November 2020
	Maint Division Report - Nov 2020

	.	Report - Police Dept. Monthly Report - November 2020
	November 2020

	.	Report - Utilities Div.  F/W/S Monthly Report - November 2020
	Utilities Division WATER-SEWER-FLOOD Monthly Report November 2020

	1.	Minutes - Closed Session Minutes of Sep. 22 & Oct. 6 - 2020
	2020-09-22 Closed Session Minutes-Summary Sheet Only
	2020-10-06 Closed Session Minutes-Summary Sheet Only

	1.	Public Hearing - CAPR CDBG
	1.	Ordinance 3880 - ZMA 20-02
	Ordinance 3880

	.	Resolution R2020-07 - Enterprise Zone 2021-2022
	Enterprise Zone 2021-22

	.	Ordinance 3881 - GOB and GOB Anticipation Notes and Refunding Bonds $4.5M
	Ordinance 3881 GOB New Money FINAL

	.	Ordinance 3882 - GOB Refunding Bonds $30M
	Ordinance 3882 GOB Refunding Bond FINAL

	.	Order 26,739 - CDBG Amendment
	2020-12-15 Order 26739 CDBG Amendment x
	CDBG Amendment

	.	Order 26,740 - 884 Sperry Terrace Surplus
	2020-12-15 Order 26740 Surplus 884 Sperry Terrace
	Summary 884 Sperry Terrace

	.	Order 26,741 - FY20 appropriations
	2020-12-15 Order 26741 FY20 appropriations

	.	Order 26,742 - SADA Google invoice
	2020-12-15 Order 26742 Google invoice
	SADA System Invoice Google

	.	Order 26,743 - Allegany Junction 3rd Amendment
	2020-12-15 Order 26743 Allegany Junction 3rd Amendment to Purchase Agreement
	Allegany Junction PA Amendment 12.3.2020

	.	Order 26,744 10 Decatur Street Certificate of Satisfaction
	2020-12-15 Order 26744 Cert of Satis 10 Decatur St
	ConsentAgendaSummary10 Decatur Street
	Cert of Satisfaction pdf

	.	Order 26,745 MHAA Grant Agreement, City Project 12-16-M Baltimore Street Access
	2020-12-15 Order 26745 Grant MD Heritage Area for Balti St.
	Agenda Summary
	MHAA Grant Agreement

	Order 26746 - Sole Source defibrillators
	2020-12-15 Order 26746 Sole Source Stryker defibrillators CARES
	Stryker

	Order 26,747 - MEIMSS Grant Defibrillator
	2020-12-15 Order 26747 MIEMSS Grant defibrillators
	Monitor Defibrillators

	Bottom

